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EDO Corporation supplies sophisticated, highly-engineered
products and systems for defense, aerotspace and industrial
|
applications, including advanced electror{ﬁc, electromechanical
and information systems and engineere%ﬂ materials which are
mission-critical and standard equipmen{t on a wide range of
military programs. The Company's Deferi\se segment provides
integrated front-line warfighting systems, iincluding radar counter-
{
measure systems, reconnaissance and {surveillance systems,
|
aircraft weapons susperision and release ‘systems, airborne mine
countermeasures systems, integrated conpbat and sonar systems
and professional, operational, technical and information
technology services. The Company's Communications and Space
Products segment supplies antenna prod;ucts and ultra-miniature
electronics and systems for the remote gensing and electronic
warfare industries. The Company's Engingered Materials segment
supplies commercial and military market-rgelated piezoelectric and
|
ceramic products, and advanced fiber cc{)mposite and structural

products composites for the aircraft, com[munication, navigation,

chemical, petrochemical, paper and oil industries.
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inancial Highlights

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

% Net Sales:
' Defense W S 243,447 183,454 142,044
Communications and Space Products | ol s 47,262 39,008 30,027
. Engi'neered Materials ; $ 38,167 36,509 34,751
' Total o $ 328,876 259,961 206,822
. Operating Earnings B | - 27076 - 9,239
‘; Net Interest Expense W s (4,956) (2,216) (2,438)
; Dividends on Preferred Shares B - (194) (881)
: Net Earnlngs Available for Common Shares before :
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accountmg Principle | JEJEREKelw] 14,758 440
v Capital Expenditures }  $ 7,093 14,298 3,861
: CompanyFundediResearch and DevelopmentiExpense N $ 8492 8,750 5,371
Backlog of Unfilled Orders | Wl 537502 204,812 252,888
Shareholders' Equity i 8 5 168,273 174,498 65,818
EBITDAP B s 51184 37,087 27,307
Weighted Average Common Shares - Diluted 17,379 14,254 10,662
Earnings Per Diluted Common Share: |
Continuing Operations 3 8 s 051 1.09 0.05
Discontinued Operations - 0.02 -

Earmings before Cumulative Effect of a Change in
Accounting Principle 4 i
Cumulatwe Effect of a Change in Accountlng Principle f
Diluted Net Earnings ; i

Cash Dividends
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To Qur Sharecholders

Record revenue and profit were achieved in 2002
2002 was a banner year for our Company. We realized over 26% growth
in sales, to $328.9 million, and in the fourth quarter our sales were

$103.1 million, surpassing $100 million quarterly sales for the first time in
the Company's history. Our pre-tax earnings adjusted for interest and
certain non-cash items, a measure known as EBITDAP, grew by 38% to a
record $51.2 million for the year. Again in 2002 we paid a dividend of
$0.12 per share.

EDO is solidly positioned on critical long-range military platforms
Our Company has achieved incumbency positions on many of the
Nation’s premier new platforms. These platforms are viewed by the
military as transformational, changing the way in which wars will be fought
in the future. This fact, along with our long-standing positions on front-line platforms that are among the
mainstay of today’s fighting forces, gives EDO a unique competitive advantage going forward.

James M. Smith
Chairman, President and CEQ

Our new platform positions alone represent significant out-year revenues for the Company of
nearly $2 biliion in the first two decades of this new century. These programs are solidly supported
by the U.S. Congress and are fully funded in the Fiscal Year 2003 Department of Defense budget.
EDO's iargest out-year revenue program, the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter (JSF), has been fully
funded for development.
This program, where we have major weapons bay responsibility, was awarded in 2002 and will yield in
excess of $1.0 billion in revenue to EDO over its program life. With numerous other countries partici-
pating in the program, it is likely
that more than the 3,000 aircraft
currently projected will be built,
with a corresponding increase in
the value of the program to our

Company. 260

The F/A-22 air superiority
fighter, where EDO supplies the
AMRAAM Vertical Eject
Launcher, is fully funded for
continued production.

EDO’s internally mounted
AMRAAM Vertical Eject Launcher
(AVEL) aboard the F/A-22

180

100

Currently Authorized
Production Quantities




incorporates a new generation of pneumatic-based technology that offers lower maintenance costs
compared with previous equipment. We received an award for Lot 2 production in 2002 and anticipate
yearly lot awards through 2011 for a total of 1,794 AVEL'’s.

Sikorsky awarded EDO a contract in 2002 to develop an advanced composite torque box for
the Comanche helicopter.
The torque box provides the mounting platform for the Hellfire Missile and other weapons systems.
Our current contract calls for delivery of 20 Engineering Development Models by December 2004.
In addition to the torque box, EDO received multiple contracts from Sikorsky in 2002 for the design and
tabrication of other composite structures on this helicopter. Along with the antenna products that we are
already supplying to the Comanche helicopter, this represents another strategic position aboard a
critical future military platform.

EDO received an award in 2002 to develop the next-generation "smart" bomb rack for the
Small Diameter Bomb (SDB) Program.
This system for the next-generation of small smart bombs represents a new avenue for expansion of
EDO’s weapons suspension and release systems core business. The ability of EDO’s SDB system to
interface with current-generation legacy fighters and bombers greatly expands the potential value of this
program. We are teamed with Lockheed Martin on SDB.

We completed a significant strategic business acquisition in 2002

The acquisition of Condor Systems, Inc. assets was completed in July 2002. Condor was a privately-
held defense electronics firm and a manufacturer of signal intelligence and electronic warfare systems
and products with 2001 revenue of approximately $78 million. Condor met all of our acquisition criteria,
including the fact that the business has strong positions on platforms such as the U.S. Navy P-3 and
EP-3 aircraft, the U.S. Air Force RC-135 Rivet Joint aircraft, and the Virginia and Los Angeles class
submarines. This acquisition considerably expands our electronic warfare presence in the areas of
intelligence, reconnaissance and surveillance systems. The acquisition has lived up to all of our
expectations, being accretive in 2002 with a positive impact on the Company’s revenue, cash flow and
backiog.

Major steps were taken in 2002 to position the Company for future growth

During the second quarter of 2002 we completed the sale of $137.8 million aggregate principal amount
of 5-year, 5.25% convertible subordinated notes in a private offering, including $12.8 million resulting
from the exercise of the over-allotment option granted to the initial purchasers in the offering. The notes
are convertible at the option of the holders into EDO common shares at a conversion price of $31.26
per share. Proceeds from the offering are intended for potential acquisitions and general corporate
purposes.
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In a second strategic action completed during the fourth quarter of 2002, we established a new
$200 million revolving credit facility. It replaced the Company’s existing $69 million credit facility,
under which there was no outsianding indebtedness.

The combined effect of these two actions gives EDQ the financial resources needed to
implement our stated near-term acquisition and growth plans. The cash provided by the private
offering and the expanded borrowing capacity under the new credit facility allow us to aggressively
pursue business acquisitions that contribute to achieving our long-range strategic objectives, as did
the acquisition of Condor in 2002 and the recently announced acquisitions of Advanced Engineering
and Research Associates (AERA) Inc., and Darlington Inc. in the first quarter of 2003.

As always, we will continue our policy of being aggressive seekers of acquisitions, but
disciplined buyers. We will continue to look for companies that are synergistic with our current
businesses, have aitractive platform and program positions, have strong management teams and
will be accretive to our Company in the first year.

Summary of financial performance in 2002
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Our strong sales performance in 2002, $328.9 million, showed 26.5% growth from the $260.0 million
achieved in 2001. Cash generated from operations, after capital expenditures and dividends, was
$22.5 million in 2002 compared to net cash used in 2001 of $2.3 million. Cash on hand at the end
of 2002 was approximately $160 million, reflecting the net effect of our sale of the 5-year 5.25%
convertible notes in April, cash from operations, and the purchase in July of the assets of Condor.
As of December we had in place a $200 million credit facility with no borrowings against it. As with
most companies having defined benefit pension plans, the poor performance of the stock market
created a non-cash expense during 2002 compared to income in prior years. As of the end of the
year, the pension plan was amended to eliminate any future increase in pension costs due to future
service cost. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, non-cash pension plan
income or expense, non-cash ESOP compensation expense and merger-related costs (EBITDAP)
grew on a per-share basis to $2.95 per diluted share from $2.60 per share in 2001 even with higher
average shares outstanding. Details of the financial performance can be found later in this report.

Key Board of Director and corporate officer appointments were made
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Following through with plans announced last year, Neil A. Armstrong retired as Chairman of EDO on
May 7, 2002, at which time the EDO Board of Directors elected me to succeed him as Chairman, in
addition to my responsibilities as President and Chief Executive Officer. | consider it an honor to
succeed Neil and continue on the course he has set for our Company. On the occasion of his
retirement, Neil said "EDQ has in place a solid team ... we designed a business plan to achieve
ambitious growth objectives ... | am confident that EDO’s future remains bright." | wholeheartedly
agree with his assessment.

Admiral Dennis Blair and James Roth joined EDO’s Board of Directors in 2002, bringing
the total Board to ten, nine of whom are outside directors. Admiral Blair, Senior Fellow, Institute
for Defense Analyses, retired from command of the U.S. Pacific Command in May 2002 prior to
which he was Director of the Joint Staff in the Office of the Chairman of Joint Chiefs of Staff.

James Roth was Chairman, President and CEO of GRC International Inc. Prior to GRCI, Mr. Roth
was a Vice President at KMS Industries following ten years at Goodyear Aerospace Corporation.




These individuals bring valuable experience and perspective to our Board that will serve our
Company well.

Our Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Darrell Reed, announced his retirement in 2002 and
Fred Bassett, former CFO of Condor Systems, Inc. assumed the positions of CFO and Vice
President, Finance, effective January 2, 2003. Darrell was a major contributor to the success of
our Company and the building of the solid financial foundation we now have for future growth.
Darrell and | worked together for many years and |, along with his many close associates at EDO,
wish him ali the best. Going forward, we will benefit from Fred Bassett's twenty-seven years of
financial management experience with leading companies in our industry, including major defense
contractors, commercial aerospace suppliers and the U.S. Government.

Frank Otto, Group Vice President of EDO’s Integrated Systems & Structures Group, was
elected by our Board of Directors to the new position of Executive Vice President of EDO
Corporation. In this position Frank will have overall corporate responsibility for operations within
each of EDO’s principal operating groups. Frank Otto has been with EDO since 1979 in various
engineering positions of increasing responsibility, including General Manager of the Company’s
Marine & Aircraft Systems Division.

impertant corporate governance actions were implemented
EDO is committed to good corporate governénce and ethical business practices. All but one
member of our Board of Directors have been and continue to be, independent of management, and
all Board committees, including the Audit Committee, have been and continue to be composed
sdlely of independent directors. EDO's long-standing Business Ethics Policy applies to all
employees, officers and directors, and is the cornerstone of our commitment to our shareholders
and our customers. Beginning in April 2002, our Board undertook a comprehensive review of its
corporate governance practices. As a result, we expanded the charter of the Nominating
Committee, now known as the Nominating and Governance Committee, to encompass continuous
review and improvement of our Board's practices, and we adopted formal governance guidelines
that, among other things, provide for an annual board self-assessment, continuing education and
other practices to ensure that our directors are held to high standards of accountability and
participation. Our governance policies and practices will be posted on our website in the near
future.

In Conclusion
Over the past three years, EDO has undertaken and successfully executed the beginning stages of
a long-term plan for the growth of your Company. Actions to date have expanded our business
base, secured our future with incumbency positions on many of our Nation's premier defense
platforms and positioned us to be one of a select group of tier-one suppliers serving our Country's
critical defense needs. EDO's future has never been more exciting nor held greater promise for
success. The EDO team will continue working to build shareholder value as we pursue the plan for

growth that we have set in place. M

James M. Smith
Chairman, President and CEO
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EDO is leading the way in weapons delivery

systems for smart and small diameter bombs

With current plans to replace 3,000
U.S. Air Force and Navy aircraft plus
potential international sales, the Joint
Sirike Fighter (JSF) program is
expected to have a value to EDO in
excess of $1 billion over the next 25
years. In 2002, EDO continued its
program to design; develop and
manufacture a suite of pnetimatic
weapons delivery systems for (R
On the U.S. Air Force F/A-22 Raptor air
superiority fighter, EDO’s AMRAAM
Vertical Eject Launcher (AViEL) enables
the aircraft to carry and launch six
AMRAAM air-to-air missiles from
the aircraft's internal weapons
bays. Over 300 F/A-22 fighters
are expected to be produceﬁ at

an average rate in full production
of about 25 to 30 aircraft pér

year. EDO received an awarid in
2002 for the second of eleven
planned AVEL production |ij)ts on
the F/A-22.

Weapons delivery systems for
the next-generation of small
smart bombs is a natural
expansion of EDO’s core
weapons delivery business.

EDO, teamed with Lockheed

Martin on the Small Diameter Bomb
(SDB) program, is developing a
weapons carriage system which will be
capable of carrying and safe}y ejecting
multiple smart weapons at supersonic
speeds. This weapons carriaige system
is expected to be installed on substan-
tially all U.S. attack aircraft including
the F/A-22.

EDO’s BRU-57 Multiple-Carriage Smart
Bomb:Rack developed for the U.S. Air
Force increases the capacity of U.S. and
international F-16s to carry multiple
smart weapons. Production of this
system continued in 2002. EDO’s BRU-55
provides the same capability for U.S.
Navy F/A-18 aircraft.

In addition an award was received in
2002 to produce 600. BRU-46A and
BRU-47A Bomb Rack Units for the 40
F-15K aircraft that Boeing is producing
for the Republic of Korea.

EDO production on F-35 JSF will begin
after the current five-year design
program and extend through 2026

On the FfA-22 program, Lockheed
Martin awarded EDQ the Raptor of
Distinction Subcontracter Award in
2002. The Lockheed Martin Director of
the FfA-22 program stated " ... I am

proud to have EDQO as a member of
Team Raptor.”



EDO has manufactured more than 12,600 bomb racks
over the past several decades for U.S. and allied aircraft

EDO Corporation 2002 Annual Report 7




Due to the cutstanding performance improvement provided by our Direction Finding (DF) Encoder Upgrade
for the B-1B feet, the U.S. Air Force requested an accelerated delivery
of additional units before the end of 2002
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EDQ's Universal Exciter Upgrade
incorporates the Iatest digital waveform
technologies to protect our nation's
strike afrcraft
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The AN/ALR-95 automatici Electronic
Support Measures (ESM) system,
developed and produced by EDO under
the Antisurface Warfare Ir?lprovement
Program (AlP), provides tﬁreat warning
andsituational awareness, including
signal exploitation through Specific
Emitter ldentification (SEI) technology,
aboard U.S. Navy P-3C Maritime Patrol
Aircraft. This state-of-theiart system is a
hybrid ESM that combines a wide
bandwidth high-probability of intercept
subsystem with a narrowﬁand
subsystem for- manual ane;llysis.
EDO received awards in 2002
from Lockheed Martin and the
U.S. Navy for continued
improvements to the system
and for the production of
eight additional AN/ALR-95
systems. Further capability
upgrades of this system are
planned in the future.

The U.S. Navy’s AN/BLQ-10
Sea Sentry multi<channel -
Electronic Suppert system is
used aboard Virginia and lj.os
Angeles class submarines;to
provide improved Electronic
Warfare capabilities. The

_ Radar Narrow Band (RNB):

Subsystem, manufactured:

by EDO, is a part-of the
AN/BLQ-10. In 2002, an award

was received from Lockheed Martin

Critical signal intelligence collection platforms
use EDO shipboard and airborne systems

The U.S. Navy's P-3C employs the
AN/ALR-95 ESM system for threat

warning and situational awareness

for three additional RNB subsystems
plus spares, bringing the total to date to
14 systems.

The AN/USQ-149 (V) is an Electronic
Surveillance system, manufactured by
EDO, for use on submarines and aircraft.
A contract award for a carry-on version
of this system was received in 2002
for over $25 million for additional
AN/USQ-149 (V) systems.

The AN/BLQ-10 provides improved
Electronic Warfare capabilities to
U.S. submarine forces



The C8-3701 Electronic Support Measures (ESM) System
was developed to provide situational awareness,
self-protection and surveillance for

U.S. and international mavies
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EDQ's SE-115 Telemetry System is a wireless datalink and navigation pod
incorporated in the world's most advanced air combat simulation systems




On every Boeing 737 aircraft

EDQ provides antennas that are
critical for navigation, communication,
and instrument landings

EDO Corporation. 2002 Annual Rep




Beginning in the 1940s, EDO has deployed over
100 undersea sensor systems installed globally

EDO was selected as part of a team led EDO was awarded a contract in 2002 for

by Ultra Electronics, the w(-based System Demonstration and Development
aerospace and defense eléctronics of the QASIS; by the U.S. Naval Sea

group, to provide bow-mopnted defensive Systems Command. OASIS will provide
. sonar systems to the United Kingdom's the U.S. Navy with an airborne mine

Type 45 naval destroyer program. defense capability that is integrated with
The initial contract providés for six ships carrier and amphibious ready groups.
systems to be:delivered by 2006. EDO Production of 40 systems:is anticipated

also completed the design phase of the to-begin in 2005.
Active Towed -Array SonaréSystem
~(ALOFTS) in 2082. This contract, won in
late-2000; wnl!l"wprgWi‘de systfe'ms for a new
-~ class of-sh:ifps, under consﬁruction by a
Pacific Rim navy. '

-In: 2002; we were awarded 2a five-
year contract to provide -
"AN/SQS-53C sonar arrays to the
Naval Sea Sysiéms Commfand
(NAVSEA) for sise in U.S. Navy
warships. EDQ's-high-power

_transducers form the key afctive
sensor used to detect, clasésify
and localize underwater thfreals
to U.S. naval forces. :

The next generation of mine The AN/SQS-53C sonar array will be
sweeping is represented by used aboard U.S, warships including
EDO's AN/ALO-220 Organib Arleigh Buike class guided missile

) IR destroyers
.Airborne and Surface Mine

Influence Sweep (OASIS). |

The U.S. Navy CH-60 Helicopter will
conduct mine sweeping operations using-

the ANJALQ-220 system



Y i
‘
:
i
{
- i -
¢
A
. s
[ : ’
f 1
-
Hapg
ER S ¢4 b
L T R

Designed to meet the precision demands of the U.S. Navy and our international zllies,
EDQ's navigation and communications systems are in the forefromt
of today's antisubmarine and mine-warfare operations
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EDQ tactical data links provide interoperability
between multiple platforms and locations
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The Rescue 21, 2 homeland security
effort, allows the U.S. Coast Guard to
respond to maritime distress situations

systems areacore

~As the-prime con
- NATO's Ship-Shore

o EDO Corporation 2002 Ari

_countries:




EDO completed its second year of
suppott to the U.S. Marinie Corps
Warfighting Laboratory in Quantico,
Virginia under a contracﬂ won in 2001.
Under the co'mract, i'ssuefd by the Marine
Corps Systems Commanfd, EDO's
Professional Services Di\flision provides
a full range of services. 1'§hese include
the development of operational concepts
employing new weapons isystems and
tactics, and the-design, rﬁ:.oni‘toring and
evaluation of combat eercises that test
and refine future warfigh.ti.ng methods
and techn.iqués. ' '

Continuing its support tothe
Naval Sea Systems Command
(NAVSEA), which now exl?nds
over two decades, EDO réceived
awards in 2002 to provide a
broad range of program
management, acquisition and
support services.

Recent contracts include
engineering, program :
management, ahalytical,
logistical and information
technology support for the
Undersea Weapons Program
Office and the AEGIS Combat
Systems Production Support
Team.

EDO's operational experience helps the U.S.
Military respond to the changing national threat

The AN/PLM-4 Radar Signal Simulator
(RSS), designed and developed by EDO,
allows flight-line testing of Electronic
Warfare systems on the U.S. Air Force’s
A-10, B-1B, B-2, B-52H, C-130, C-141,
F-15, F-16.and other aircraft. EDO
received a task order in 2002 from the
U.S. Air Force, Warner Robins Air
Logistics Center, for an additional 88
AN/PLM-4 systems. If all options are
exercised, the number of flight-fine
RSS's manufactured and delivered
domestically and internationally on this
and other contracts will exceed 600. -

Fleet Readiness: The USS Camden
(AOE-2) refuels the USS Abraham
Lincoln {(CVN-72) and the Aegis Cruiser
USS Shiloh (CG-67) with USS
Crommelin (FFG-37) in waiting station

EDO has worked with the Marine Corps
Warfighting Laboratory in Quantico,
Virginia, since the Lab's imception
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EDQ's latest flight-line test equipment product is the
AN/PLM-4 used to test aircraft radar warning systems
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Computerized, precision multi-axis surfacing machine used to fabricate the leading-
and trailing-edge fairings for EDQ's BRU-57 Multiple-Carriage Smart Bomb Rack




Sikorsky awarded EDO a contract in
2002 to develop am advanced composite
torque box for the RAH-66 Comanche
helicopter

T re UCéd weight, lower -
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At EDO,
Tomorrow's
Systems
are
Today's
Research
and

Development

Projects—

Swarmer Carriage System i
EDO continued its development of the Swarmer Carriage System (SCS) in 2002. This §ystem
combines EDQO’s state-of-the-art weapons interface electronics with pneumatic suspebsion and
release technologies to form the latest in smart weapons carriage. In 2002, an SCS sjstem was
delivered as part of a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement (CRADA) w"ith the Eglin
Air Force Base Armament Directorate. U.S. Air Force fit checks and smart weapons loading
demonstrations were successfully completed. An in-flight weapons release from an F-16 aircraft is
planned early in 2003.

Antenna Element Design
EDO’s technology development efforts during 2002 included a U.S. Army Contract award in
support of advancements in electrically small, gain-efficient broad bandwidth antenna element

'

design. This revolutionary technology reduces low frequency antenna size for pilotlesfs vehicles

and strike aircraft and has progressed from successful computer modeling in 2002 to|prototype
hardware development in 2003. 1

Synchronous Signal Processing Circait ‘
During 2002, EDO designed and built a synchronous signal processing circuit that caﬁ be
incorporated into most sonar detection circuits. This signal processing circuit can bei used with a
number of ceramic transducers, and it is envisioned that this capability will become ab integral
part of EDO acoustic system designs in the future. The design was implemented in a Eway that
facilitates its use with today's ship-board data networks and accommodates new datai
transmission technologies that will be incorporated in these networks in the future.



k End;to-Eirxd
Test System

Radar Signal Simulator Computer Interface RF Measurement Device

Digital Signal Processing Card ;

. New Digital Signal Processing (lDSP) technology provides |mproved performance and added
functionality for EDO ELINT/ESM systems which will be used for detectmg and locating new
signals found at sea and on the battlefield. This technology coupled with smaller, lighter receivers
provides the building blocks for upgrades to existing systems as weII as gateways to new
architectures and applrcatlons 'In 2002, EDO deveioped a new DSP-based single card solution for
signal processing to be used i |n the E-2C Hawkeye aircraft. Using Iarge state-of-the-art field-
programmable gate arrays, thrsl design is berng expanded in 2003 to handle even wider
bandwidths needed for special *S|gnals and high speed |ntercept|on

RF Measurement Device [

EDO developed an RF Measurement Device that expands the functlonalrty of our Radar Signal
Simulator (AN/PLM-4) to a complete End-to- End Test System (ETE[T S). This development will
provide users with the unique capability to develop their own Test Program Sets for individual
systems through the use of an lEDO -supplied software program. The ETETS will be the first of its

kind in a portable, battery- powered system configuration.

Electronic Warfare/lnformajtion Warfare (EW/IW)
EDO is continuing to develop the next-generation EW/IW Exciter to address tomorrow's radar and
communication threats. In 2002 EDO completed an architecture and design feasibility study of
the Exciter's modulation generator. In 2003 we will build a state- l—the-art prototype to allow
laboratory evaluation and testir;rg by the U.S. Government and ED(E). This next-generation
architecture will be compatible with the U.S. Navy EA-18G and the U.S. Air Force B-52, the
Miniature Air-Launched Decoy iMALD), and the Unmanned Combalt Aerial Vehicle (UCAV).
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

{NoTt CoveRED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
{in thousands, except per share amounts)
Statement of Earnings Data:
Net sales $ 328876 $ 259,961 206,822 $ 97,938 § 81403
Costs and expenses: ‘
Cost of sales 240,850 189,733 151,512 72,337 57,817
Selling, general and administrative 47,584 34,013 28,205 13,602 11,649
Research and development 8,492 8,750 5371 2,748 2,382
Unusual expenses (income)? 2,565 389 11,495 - (2,200}
299,491 232,885 197,583 88,687 69,548
Operating earnings 29,385 27,076 9,239 9,248 11,755
Net interest expense {4,956) (2,216) {2,438) (785) {428)
Other non-operating {expense) income, nat {95) [971) |216) 230 {100)
(5.051) (3,187} (2.654) {555) {528)
Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle 24,334 23,889 6,585 8,694 11,227
Income tax expense (10,342) 19.210) {5,264) (2,610 (880)
Earnings {loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle from:
Continuing operations 13,992 14,679 1321 6,084 10,347
Discontinued operations - 273 - (4,064) {2,116)
Earnings before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle 13,982 14,952 1,321 2,020 8.231
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax
of $7900 (3,363) - - - -
Dividends on preferred sharest - 194 81 1.000 1,063
Net eainings available for common shares $ 10,629 $ 14,758 440 $ 1,020 3 7,168
Per Common Share Data:
Basic net garnings {loss}:
Continuing operations $ 0.82 $ 1.4 0.05 3 0.76 3 142
Discontinued operations - 0.02 - (0.61) {0.33)
Basic net earnings before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle 0.82 116 0.05 0.15 1.09
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.20) - - - -
Basic net earnings $ 0.62 $ 1.16 0.05 $ 015 § 1.08
Diluted net earnings {loss}):
Continuing operations $ 0.81 $ 1.09 0.06 S 0.65 $ 1.21
Discontinued operations - 0.02 - (0.50 {0.27)
Diluted net earnings before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle 0.81 [RA 0.05 0.15 0.94
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle {0.20) - - - -
Diluted net earnings $ 0.61 $ 1.1 0.05 $ 015  § 0.94
Cash dividends per common share $ 0.12 $ 0.12 0.12 $ 012 $ 0.115
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 17,080 12,778 9,601 6,701 6,549
Diluted 17,379 14,254 10,662 8,032 7,785
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (CONTINUED)

EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Not CovERED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORTS)

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
{in thousands, except per share amounts)
Other Data:
EBITDAPY $ 51,184 § 37037 § 27307 $ 11,127 3 9,606
Depreciation and amortization 11,321 11,396 9441 3.390 2,343
Capital expenditures 7,083 14,298 3,861 4,032 3,133
Backlog 375,028 294,812 252,888 133,880 130,151

Consclidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and restricted cash  § 159,860 $ 58,031 b 16,621 § 29842 $ 33510

Working capital 204,382 105,177 37,552 35,110 32674
Total assets 481,574 285,630 214,254 124,491 124,630
Total debre 137,800 483 49,444 36,483 43,732
Shareholders’ egquity 168,273 174,498 65,818 40,241 38,051

Reconciliation of GAAP Earnings to EBITDAP:
Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle § 24334 § 23889 8 6,585 $ 8,694 § 11227
Merger-related costs 567 1,318 11,485 - -
Defined benefit pensian plan curtailment loss 1,998 - - - -
Post-retirement curtailment gain - (929} - - -
Litigation settlement income - - - - (2,200)
Net interest expense 4,956 2218 2,438 785 428
Depreciation and amortization 11,321 11,396 9.441 3,380 2,343
Subtotal - EBITDA 43,176 37,890 29,959 12,869 11,798
Pension expense {income) 3,965 (2,634} (4,495) (1,742) (2,192)
Employee Stock Ownership Plan compensation expense 4,043 1,781 1,843 - -
EBITDAP $§ 51,184 § 37037 $ 27307 3 11,127 3 9,606
a. Reflects $0.2 million and $0.4 million in 2002 for the write-off of purchased in-process research and development

(“IPR&D") and other merger-related costs, respectively, associated with cur acquisition of the assets of Condor Systems,
Inc., as well as a $2.0 million curtailment loss associated with our defined benefit pension plan; a $0.9 million post-retire-
ment curtailment gain in 2001; $1.3 million and $11.5 million in the years 2001 and 2000, respectively, for the write-off
of IPR&D (in 2000); and other EDO-AIL merger-related costs (in 2001 and 2000); and $2.2 million in 1998 of litigation
settlement income.

b. Upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we
recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle effective January 1, 2002. See Note 1(g) to the consoli-
dated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002,

c. ESOP Convertible Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series A. On March 8, 2001, all outstanding preferred shares were con-
verted into common shares. No preferred dividends were paid after March 8, 2001.

d. EBITDAP consists of earnings from continuing operations before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and non-cash
pension and non-cash employee stock ownership plan compensation expense, excluding a defined benefit pension plan
curtailment loss in 2002, a post-retirement curtailment gain in 2001, the write-off of IPR&D in 2002 and 2001, merger-
related costs in 2002, 2001 and 2000, and litigation settlement income in 1998, ltems excluded from EBITDAP are signif-
icant components in understanding and assessing our financial performance. EBITDAP is a measure commonly used by
financial analysts and investors to evaluate financial results of companies in our defense and aerospace industry and,
therefore, we believe it provides useful information to investors. EBITDAP should not be considered in isolation or as an
alternative to net income, cash flows generated by operations, investing or financing activities, or other financial statement
data presented in the consolidated financial statements as indicators of financial performance or liquidity. Because EBIT-
DAP is not a measure of financial performance determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States and is susceptible to varying calculations among companies, EBITDAP as presented may not be com-
parable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

e. Includes note payable, Employee Stock Ownership Trust loan obligation and current portions of long-term debt.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL ConDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW
EDO Corporation {the “Company”) is a leading sup-
plier of sophisticated, highly engineered products and
systems for defense, aerospace and industrial applica-
tions. We believe our advanced electronic, electrome-
chanical systems, information systems and engi-
neered materials are mission-critical, standard
equipment on a wide range of military programs. We
have three reporting segments: Defense, Communica-
tions and Space Products, and Engineered Materials,
which represented 74%, 14% and 12%, respectively, of
our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2002,
Our Defense segment provides integrated front-line
warfighting systems and components including elec-
tronic warfare, radar countermeasures systems, recon-
naissance and surveillance systems, aircraft weapons
suspension and release systems, airborne mine coun-
termeasures systems, integrated combat and sonar
systems, command, control and communications sys-
tems and professional, operational, technical and infor-
mation technology services for military forces and
governments worldwide. Our Communications and
Space Products segment supplies antenna products
and ultra-miniature electronics and systems for the
remote sensing and electronic warfare industries. Our
Engineered Materials segment supplies commercial
and military piezo-electric ceramic products and
advanced fiber composite structural products for the
aircraft, communication, navigation, chemical, petro-
chemical, paper and oil industries.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITION

On July 26, 2002, we acquired substantially all of the
assets of Condor Systems, Inc., a privately-held
defense electronics company and its subsidiary
(together, “Condor”) based in Morgan Hill and Simi
Valley, California for $61.9 million in cash, in addition
to transaction costs of $4.1 million, and the assump-
tion of certain normal employee benefit obligations,
certain trade and supplier payables and certain other
accrued liabilities, primarily related to contract loss
reserves. We also assumed $28.0 million in cutstand-
ing standby letters of credit. Condor had been operat-
ing under the protection of Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. We expect the acquisition of Con-
dor to expand our electronic warfare business in the
areas of reconnaissance and surveillance systems and
communications and countermeasures systems. Con-
dor became part of our Defense and Communications

and Space Products segments and was accretive to
earnings in 2002.

In October 2001, we acquired Dynamic Systems,
Inc.. a privately-held company based in Alexandria, Vir-
ginia for $13.9 million in cash, including transaction
costs. Dynamic Systems, Inc. became part of our
Defense segment and provides professional and infor-
mation technology services primarily to the Depart-
ment of Defense and other government agencies. For
the 12-month period prior to the acquisition, Dynamic
Systems Inc. had revenues of approximately $15.0
million.

On April 28, 2000, one of our wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries merged with AIL Technologies Inc. ("AIL").
Under the merger agreement and share purchase
agreements with certain AlL shareholders, all of the
outstanding shares of common stock and preferred
stock of AIL were exchanged for 6,553,194 newly-
issued EDO common shares valued at $39.4 million
and cash payments aggregating $13.3 miilion. The
merged company assumed AlL debt of $29.7 million.
Of the newly-issued shares, 5,270,540 were held in
trust by All’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the
"AlL ESOP"). As of January 1, 20071, the AIL ESOP and
the existing EDO Employee Stock Ownership Plan
{("EDO ESOP") were merged into a single plan (the
“ESOP"). As of March 8, 2001, the existing preferred
shares in the EDO ESOP were converted into approxi-
mately 1,067,281 of our common shares. In our public
offering completed October 30, 2001, the ESOP sold
1,458,900 shares reducing its ownership of EDO to
about 23% of outstanding common shares as of
December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, the
ESOP owns approximately 22% of outstanding com-
mon shares.

Each of the above acquisitions has been accounted
for as a purchase business combination and is
included in our results of operations from its acquisi-
tion date. The results of operations for the periods pre-
sented are affected by the timing of these acquisi-
tions.

In January 2000, we sold our satellite orientation
sensor products business, Barnes Engineering Com-
pany. Accordingly, our consolidated financial state-
ments treat the satellite products business as a discon-
tinued operation. Revenues, costs and expenses,
assets and liabilities, and cash flows associated with
the satellite products business have been excluded
from the respective captions in the consolidated finan-
cial statements and discussion below.
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DISCUSSION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We make estimates and assumptions in the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Actual results could differ significantly
from those estimates under different assumptions and
conditions. We believe that the following discussion
addresses our critical accounting policies, which are
those that are most important to the portrayal of our
consolidated financial condition and results of opera-
tions and which require our most difficult and subjec-
tive judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. The following is a brief discussion of the crit-
ical accounting policies employed by us:

Revenue Recognition
Sales under long-term, fixed-price contracts, including
pro-rata profits, are generally recorded based on the
relationship of costs incurred to date to total projected
final costs or, alternatively, as deliveries and other
milestones are achieved or services are provided.
These projections are revised throughout the lives of
the contracts. Adjustments to profits resulting from
such revisions are made cumulative to the date of
change and may affect current period earnings.

Our gross profit is affected by a variety of factors,
including the mix of products, systems and services
sold, production efficiencies, price competition and
general economic conditions. Estimated losses on
long-term contracts are recorded when identified.
Sales under cost reimbursement contracts are
recorded as costs are incurred. Sales on other than
long-term contract orders (principally commercial
products) are recorded as shipments are made.

Inventories
Inventories under long-term contracts and programs
reflect all accumulated production costs, including fac-
tory overhead, initial tooling and other related costs
{including general and administrative expenses relating
to certain of our defense contracts), less the portion of
such costs charged to cost of sales. Inventory costs in
excess of amounts recoverable under contracts and
which relate to a specific technology or application
and which may not have alternative uses are charged
to cost of sales when such circumstances are identi-
fied. All other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
(principally first-in, first-out method) or market.

From time to time, we manufacture certain prod-
ucts prior to receiving firm contracts in anticipation of
future demand. Such costs are inventoried and are
incurred to help maintain stable and efficient produc-
tion schedules.

Several factors may influence the sale and use of
our inventories, including our decision to exit a prod-
uct line, technological change, new product develop-
ment and/or revised estimates of future product
demand. If inventory is determined to be overvalued
due to one or more of the above factors, we would be
required to recognize such loss in value at the time of
such determination.

Under the contractual arrangements by which
progress payments are received, the United States
Government has a title to or a security interest in the
inventories identified with related contracts.

Property, Plant and Equipment

and Other Long-Lived Assets
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost and
is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the esti-
mated useful lives of such assets. Leasehold improve-
ments are amortized over the shorter of their esti-
mated useful lives or their respective lease periods. In
those cases where we determine that the useful life of
property, plant and equipment should be shortened,
we would depreciate the net book value in excess of
the salvage value over its revised remaining useful life
thereby increasing depreciation expense. Factors such
as technological advances, changes to our business
model, changes in our capital strategy, changes in the
planned use of equipment, fixtures, software cr
changes in the planned use of facilities could result in
shortened useful lives.

Long-ived assets, other than goodwill, are reviewed
by us for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
any such asset may not be recoverable. The estimate
of cash flow is based upon, among other things, cer-
tain assumptions about expected future operating per-
formance. Our estimates of undiscounted cash flow
may differ from actual cash flow due to factors such
as technological changes, economic conditions,
changes to our business model or changes in our
operating performance. If the sum of the undis-
counted cash flows, excluding interest, is less than the
carrying value, we would recognize an impairment
loss, measured as the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the asset.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standard ("SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill must be tested at least
annually for impairment at the reporting unit level. If
an indication of impairment exists, we are required to
determine if such goodwill's implied fair value is less
than its carrying value in order to determine the
amount, if any. of the impairment loss required to be
recorded. Impairment indicators include, among other




conditions, cash flow deficits, an historic or antici-
pated decline in revenue or operating profit, adverse
legal or regulatory developments, accumulation of
costs significantly in excess of amounts originally
expected to acquire the asset and a material decrease
in the fair value of some or all of the assets.

Persion and Post-Retirement Benefit Obligations
We sponsor defined benefit pension and other retire-
ment plans in various forms covering all eligible
employees. Several statistical and other factors which
attempt to anticipate future events are used in calcu-
lating the expense and liability related to the plans.
These factors include assumptions about the discount
rate, expected return on plan assets and rate of future
compensation increases as determined by us, within
certain guidelines and in conjunction with our actuar-
ial consultants. in addition, our actuarial consultants
also use subjective factors such as withdrawal and
mortality rates to estimate the expense and liability
related to these plans. The actuarial assumptions used
by us may differ significantly, either favorably or unfa-
vorably, from actual results due to changing market
and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal
rates or longer or shorter life spans of participants.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For 2002, earnings before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle available for common
shares were $14.0 million or $0.81 per diluted share.
In 2002, we recorded a $3.4 million net of tax charge
($0.20 per diluted share) to account for the cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting principle upon
our adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” This charge occurred in the Engi-
neered Materials segment and is comprised of $2.3
million and $1.9 million of impaired goodwill and
trademark, respectively. offset by a tax benefit of $0.8
million. Including the cumulative effect, net earnings
available for common shares were $10.6 million or
$0.61 per diluted share. The 2002 results include pre-

tax merger-related costs of $0.6 million associated
with our acquisition of Condor in July 2002 and a pre-
tax defined benefit pension plan curtailment loss of
$2.0 million.

Net sales for 2002 increased 26.5% to $328.9 mil-
lion from $260.0 million for 2007, reflecting five
months of Condor’s net sales in 2002, as well as
increases in sales of technology services attributable
o twelve months of Dynamic Systems’ net sales in
2002 as compared to approximately three months in
2001 due to its acquisition in October 2001. In addi-
tion, there were increases in sales of electronic war-
fare equipment, aircraft weapons suspension and
release systems, sonar systems, antenna products,
electro-ceramic products and advanced fiber compos-
ite structural products, partially offset by a net
decrease in our remaining product lines. Results of the
former Condor business were included from the acqui-
sition date of July 26, 2002 and accounted for
approximately $36.3 million or 11.1% of 2002 net
sales.

On April 2, 2002, we completed our offering of
$137.8 million of 5.26% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2007 (the “Notes”) and received $133.7
million, net of commissions paid. On November 8,
2002, we negotiated with a consortium of banks to
increase our credit facility’s borrowing capacity from
$69.0 million to $140.0 million and again, on Decem-
ber 20, 2002, from $140.0 million to its current limit
of $200.0 million.

On October 30, 2001, we completed a public offer-
ing of 3,716,100 shares of our common stock, result-
ing in net proceeds to us of approximately $81.5 mil-
lion. On November 27, 2001, we completed the
redemption of all of our outstanding 7% Convertible
Subordinated Debentures due 2011 (the “Deben-
tures”). Debentures with an aggregate outstanding
face value of $22.1 million were converted into
1,005,250 common shares and Debentures with an
aggregate face value of $0.2 million were redeemed
for cash plus accrued interest.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

COMPARISON OF 2002 TO 2001
Net sales by segment were as follows:

Twelve Months Ended

December 31, Increase From

2002 2001 Prior
Segment {dollars in millions) Period
Defense $ 2435 § 1835 32.7%
Communications and
Space Products 473 40.0 18.3%
Enpineered Materials 381 36.0 4.5%
Total § 3289 § 2600 26.5%

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2002
increased 26.5% to $328.9 million from $260.0 mil-
lion of net sales from continuing operations for the
year ended December 31, 2001. This increase com-
prised sales growth of $60.0 million for the Defense
segment, $7.3 million for the Communications and
Space Products segment and $1.6 million for the
Engineered Materials segment.

In the Defense segment, $28.7 million or 47.8% of
the net increase was attributable to five months of
sales of Condor since its acquisition on July 26, 2002,
Additionally in the Defense segment, there were
increases in sales of technology services attributable to
twelve months of Dynamic Systems’ net sales in 2002
as compared to approximately three months in 2001
due to its acquisition in October 2001, electronic war-
fare equipment attributable in part to the Universal
Exciter Upgrade program, aircraft weapons suspension
and release systems due in part to efforts on the pro-
duction phase of the AMRAAM Vertical Eject Launcher
program for the F-22, efforts on the production lots of
the BRU-57 Multiple-Carriage Smart Bomb Rack plat-
form with the U.S. Air Force, efforts on the Joint Strike
Fighter's suspension and release subsystem and weap-
ons release units programs and development efforts
associated with the Small Diameter Bomb program.
There was also an increase in our sales of undersea
sonar systems. These increases in the Defense seg-
ment were partially offset most notably by the
decreases in sales of mine countermeasures systems
as well as integrated combat systems, the latter of
which was due primarily to the delay in orders antici-
pated to be awarded to us in 2002 from international
customers.

In the Communications and Space Products seg-
ment. $7.6 million of the net increase in sales was
attributable to sales of electronic protection systems
from the aforementioned acquisition of Condor. Addi-
tionally, sales increases in our antenna product line

were more than offset by decreases in sales of our
space sensor communication products.

In the Engineered Materials segment, there were
increases in sales of electro-ceramic products, attribut-
able to transducers and sonar arrays, and advanced
fiber composite structural products.

Operating earnings for the year ended December
31, 2002 were $32.0 million or 9.7% of net sales,
hefore the write-off of $0.2 million of purchased in-
process research and development ("IPR&D") and
$0.4 million of other merger-related costs associated
with our acquisition of the assets of Condor, as well as
a $2.0 million defined benefit pension plan curtail-
ment loss. This compares to operating earnings for
the year ended December 31, 2001 of $27.5 million
or 10.6% of net sales, before EDO-AIL merger-related
costs of $1.3 million and a post-retirement benefits
curtailment gain of $0.9 million. Including the respec-
tive aforementioned charges or gain in each year,
operating earnings for the year ended December 31,
2002 were $29.4 million or 8.9% of net sales com-
pared to $27.1 million or 10.4% of net sales for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in oper-
ating margin for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001 was
due primarily to the recording of $6.0 million of
defined benefit pension plan expense, which includes
$2.0 million of a curtailment loss, and ESOP compen-
sation expense of $4.0 million in 2002 compared to
$2.6 million of pension income and $ 1.8 million of
ESOP compensation expense in 2001. The change to
pension expense in 2002 from pension income in
2001 was due primarily to continued poor perfor-
mance of plan assets invested in the stock market and
the lowering of the discount rate in 2002 reflecting
the general decline in interest rates. Additionally, pen-
sion expense in 2002 included a $2.0 million curtail-
ment loss upon an amendment to the pension plan
whereby benefits accrued were frozen as of Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The increase in ESOP compensation
expense is attributable in part to our higher average
stock price in 2002 compared to 2001, Pension and
ESOP compensation expense or income is allocated
between cost of sales and selling, general and admin-
istrative expense.

The Defense segment’s operating earnings for the
year ended December 31, 2002 were $28.7 million or
11.8% of this segment’s net sales compared to operat-
ing earnings for the year ended December 31, 2001 of
$21.9 million or 11.9% of this segment’s net sales. The
increase in operating earnings in the Defense segment
is due primarily to the completion of some MK-105
Mod 4 mine countermeasures systems in 2002 and
final deliveries of Lots 4 and 5 of the Universal Exciter




Upgrade program resulting in additional profit based on
final costs at completion compared to prior estimates.
These increases were offset in part by a decrease in air-
craft weapons suspension and release systems result-
ing from a shift from primarily production efforts last
year to lower-margin non-recurring development efforts
on recently awarded long-term programs. The Commu-
nications and Space Products segment’s operating loss
for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $0.4 mik
lion or 0.9% of this segment’s net sales compared to a
loss of $0.4 million or 1.0% of this segment’s net sales
in 2001. Included in the 2002 operating loss was a

$ 1.5 million charge taken in the first quarter to provide
for manufacturing inefficiencies resulting from lowering
our production levels of the Ku-Band down converter.
Such production level decrease was prompted primarily
by one of our primary customer’s decrease in its fore-
casted demand for our Ku-Band down converters. The
Engineered Materials segment’s operating earnings for
the year ended December 31, 2002 were $3.2 million
or 8.3% of this segment’s net sales compared to oper-
ating earnings for the year ended December 31, 2001
of $4.6 million or 12.6% of this segment’s net sales.
The net decrease in the Engineered Materials seg-
ment's operating earnings was due primarily to the
aforementioned pension expense in 2002 compared to
pension income in 2001, as well as a decrease in con-
tribution from fiber composite waste tanks, due prima-
rily to the commercial aviation industry’s decreased
demand for such tanks in 2002.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2002 increased to $47.6
million or 14.5% of net sales from $34.0 million or
13.1% of net sales for the year ended December 31,
2001. This increase was primarily attributable to the
acquisition of Condor in July 2002, twelve months of
Dynamic Systems’ expenses in 2002, and the afore-
mentioned change to pension expense in 2002 com-
pared to pension income in 2001 and increased ESOP
compensation expense.

Research and development expense for the year
ended December 31, 2002 decreased to $8.5 million
or 2.6% of net sales from $8.8 million or 3.4% of net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease was primarily attributable to higher expendi-
tures in the Communications and Space Products seg-
ment in 2001 relating to fiber optics product develop-
ment.

Interest expense, net of interest income, for the year
ended December 31, 2002 increased 123.6% to $5.0
million from $2.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2001, due primarily to interest expense associated

with our $137.8 million principal amount Notes,

increased amortization expense of deferred debt issu-
ance costs associated with the offering of the Notes
and increased amortization of deferred financing costs
associated with our credit facility amended in Novem-
ber 2002, partially offset by an $0.8 million increase
in interest income due primarily to a higher average
cash and cash equivalent balance resulting from our
offering of the Notes in April 2002 and stock offering
in 2001. Interest expense for the year ended December
31. 2001 consisted primarily of interest expense on our
Debentures, which were fully converted into common
shares or redeemed in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Income tax expense reflects our effective rate of
42 5% for the year ended December 31, 2002 com-
pared to 38.6% for the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase in the effective tax rate was princi-
pally attributable to the increased amount of non-
deductible, non-cash ESOP compensation expense
and increase in state taxes in 2002.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, earnings
available for common shares before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle decreased to
$14.0 million or $0.81 per diluted common share on
17.4 million diluted shares from $ 14.8 million or $1.11
per diluted common share on 14.3 millicn diluted
shares for the year ended December 31, 2001. For the
year ended December 31, 2002, net earnings avail-
able for common shares after the cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle decreased to $10.6
million or $0.61 per diluted common share on 17.4
million diluted shares from $14.8 million or $1.11 per
diluted common share on 14.3 million diluted shares
for the vear ended December 31, 2001. The cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting principle for the
year ended December 31, 2002 was recorded as of
January 1, 2002 and is shown net of a tax benefit of
$0.8 million on the consolidated statement of earn-
ings. This charge pertained to the impairment of
goodwill and a trademark resulting from impairment
tests performed in 2002, as required by SFAS No.
142. The impairment occurred in the Engineered
Materials segment and is comprised of the following:
$2.2 million and $1.9 million of goodwill and a trade-
mark, respectively, related to our acquisition of Spe-
cialty Plastics and $0.1 million of goodwill related to
our acquisition of Zenix.

Dividends on preferred shares for the year ended
December 31, 2001 were $0.2 million. On March 8,
2001, we converted all of our outstanding preferred
shares into 1,087,281 common shares. No preferred
dividends were paid after March 8, 2001.
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COMPARISON OF 2001 TO 2000
Net sales by segment were as follows:

Twelve Months Ended

December 31, Increase
2001 2000 From Prior
Segment {dollars in millions) Period
Dsfense § 1835 § 1420 29.0%
Communications and
Space Products 40.0 300 33.0%

Engineered Materials 36.5 34.8 5.0%
Total $ 2600 § 2068 26.0%

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2001
increased 26.0% to $260.0 million from $206.8 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2000. This
increase comprised sales growth of $41.5 million for
the Defense segment. $10.0 million for the Communi-
cations and Space Products segment and $1.7 million
for the Engineered Materials segment. Of this sales
growth, $26.9 million in the Defense segment and
$10.0 million in the Communications and Space
Products segment was attributable to the EDO-AIL
merger. Since the EDO-AIL merger was completed at
the end of April 2000, the twelve months of 2000
reflected eight months of combined operations, while
2001 reflected a full twelve months of combined cper-
ations. In addition, there were increases in sales of air-
craft weapons suspension and release systems, inte-
grated combat systems, technology services, electro-
ceramic products and advanced fiber composite struc-
tural products for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to the year ended December 31, 2000.

Operating earnings from continuing operations for
the year ended December 31, 2001 (before consider-
ing one-time EDO-AIL merger-related costs of $1.3
million in 2001 and $11.5 million in 2000 and before
a post-retirement benefits curtailment gain of $0.9
million in 2001) increased 1o $27.5 million or 10.6%
of net sales from $20.7 million or 10.0% of net sales
for the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase
in operating earnings was attributable to the EDO-AIL
merger as well as earnings from completed mine
countermeasures contracts and increased margins in
electro-ceramic products. These increases were par-
tially offset by losses in the Communications and
Space Products segment on development programs.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, net earnings
available for common shares increased to $14.8 mil-
lion or $1.11 per diluted common share on 14.3 mil-
fion diluted shares from $0.4 million or $0.05 per
diluted common share on 10.7 million diluted shares
for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Selling. general and administrative expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2001 increased to $34.0

million or 13.1% of net sales from $29.2 million or
14.1% of net sales for the year ended December 31,
2000. This increase was primarily attributable to the
EDO-AIL merger and increased bid and proposa! costs.

Research and development expense for the year
ended December 31, 2001 increased to $8.8 million
or 3.4% of net sales from $5.4 million or 2.6% of net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
increase was primarily attributable to expenditures in
the Communications and Space Products segment
relating to fiber optics product development.

Interest expense, net of interest income, for the year
ended December 31, 2001 decreased to $2.2 million
from $2.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2000.

Income tax expense reflected our effective rate of
38.6% for the year ending December 31, 2001. This
compares to an income tax expense at an effective
rate of 79.9% for the year ended December 31, 2000.
The effective tax expense of 79.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2000 was principally attributable to a
write-off of $6.7 million of purchased in-process
research and development and other expenses associ-
ated with the EDO-AIL merger that were not deduct-
ible for income tax purposes.

Dividends on preferred shares for the year ended
December 31, 2001 decreased to $0.2 million from
$0.9 miilion for the year ended December 31, 2000,
due to the conversion of all outstanding preferred
shares into 1,067,281 common shares on March 8,
2001. No preferred dividends were paid after March 8,
2007.

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2002, IPR&D of
$0.2 million related to a Condor project that had not
reached technological feasibility and that had no alter-
native future uses. The amount allocated to such
project was expensed as of the date of the acquisition.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, IPR&D of
$6.7 million related to an AlL project that had not
reached technological feasibility and that had no alter-
native future uses, The amount allocated to such
project was expensed as of the date of the EDO-AIL
merger. This development project related 1o a generic
satellite subsystem called a Ku-Ku Band Down Con-
verter for the fixed satellite service market. The con-
verter represented a single channel providing signal
conversion from uplink frequencies in the 14GHz range
to the downlink frequencies in the 12GHz range. At the
time of the EDO-AIL merger, it was estimated that 90%
of the development effort had been completed and
the remaining development effort would take about six
months to complete. This project was completed,




resulting in sales of Ku-Ku Band Converters in 2001.
During 2000 and the first six months of 2007, the
efforts required to develop the in-process technology
of this project into commercially viable products princi-
pally related to the completion of planning, designing,
prototyping and testing functions that were necessary
to establish that the down converter produced would
meet its design specifications, including technical per-
formance features and functional requirements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Balance Sheet
Our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
increased 128.3% to $132.5 million at December 31,
2002 from $58.0 million at December 31, 2001. This
increase was due primarily to the aforementioned issu-
ance of the Notes in April 2002, which resulted in
gross cash proceeds of $137.8 million before commis-
sions of $4.1 million, and cash provided by operations
of $31.9 million. The increase in cash and cash equiv-
alents was offset by $59.0 million paid for the acquisi-
tion of Condor in July 2002, net of cash acquired,
$4.1 million paid for transaction costs related to the
Condor acquisition, $27.3 million of cash restricted to
collateralize outstanding letters of credit, $7.1 million
for the purchase of capital equipment and $2.4 mil-
lion for the payment of common share dividends.

During 2001, cash, cash equivalents and market-
able securities increased to $58.0 million from $16.6
million, primarily due to the receipt of net proceeds of
approximately $81.5 million from the sale of
3,716,100 common shares, $14.1 million provided by
operations and $1.9 million from the exercises of
stock options. These increases were partially offset by
uses of $13.9 million for the acquisition of Dynamic
Systems, $14.3 million for purchases of capital equip-
ment, $3.2 million for the repurchase of Debentures,
$4.9 million for the payment in full of the EDO ESOP
loan obligation and $2.1 million for payment of com-
mon and preferred dividends.

Restricted cash of $27.3 million at December 37,
2002 represents collateral backing 105% of outstand-
ing letters of credit assumed in connection with the
acquisition of Condor. As the letters of credit expire or
are cancelled, the collateral will be released. In the
fourth quarter of 2002, we increased our credit facility
to $200.0 million, which will allow for issuance of let-
ters of credit under the amended facility and the
release of restricted cash.

Accounts receivable increased 20.6% to $100.6
million at December 31, 2002 from $83.4 million at
December 31, 2001 due primarily to the acquisition of
Condor. Excluding the effects of Condor, accounts

receivable increased $2.5 million from December 31,
2001.

Inventories increased 41.3% to $32.4 million at
December 31, 2002 from $22.9 million at December
31, 2001 due primarily to the acquisition of Condor.
Excluding the effects of Condor, inventories increased
$2.9 million from December 31, 2001.

The notes receivable of $3.0 million at December
31, 2002 (of which $0.4 million is included in current
assets at December 31, 2002) are comprised of a
note related to the sale of property in Deer Park in
June 2000, which had a balance of $1.1 million at
December 31, 2002, and $ 1.9 million in notes related
to the sale of our former College Point facility in Janu-
ary 1996. The Deer Park facility note is due in monthly
installments through July 2015 and bears interest at a
rate of 7.6% per annum. The College Point facility
notes are due in annual amounts through September
2004 with a final payment of $1.3 million due on
December 31, 2004 and bear interest at 7.0% per
annum. The latter notes receivable are secured by a
mortgage on the facility.

Contract advances increased 21.4% to $20.3 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002 from $16.7 million at
December 31, 2001 due to receipts of advances by
Condor subsequent to its acquisition date, offset by
the use of previously received advances for costs
incurred on foreign contracts.

In 2002, capital expenditures of $7.1 million,
excluding the effects of the Condor acquisition, have
decreased from the prior year as we incurred signifi-
cant capital expenditures in 2001 at the Deer Park
facility in anticipation of a potential sale leaseback,
which did not occur in 2002. We are currently review-
ing the status of Deer Park and all of our facilities in
light of recent acquisitions.

Financing Activities

Credit Facility

At December 31, 2002, we have a $200.0 million
credit facility with a consortium of banks, led by Cit-
ibank, N.A. as the administrative agent, Fleet National
Bank as the syndication agent and Wachovia Bank,
N.A. as the documentation agent. The facility expires
in November 2005 and amended the $69.0 million
credit facility in place at December 31, 2001.

The credit facility provides us with sub-limits of bor-
rowing up to $125.0 million for acquisition-related
financing and up to $125.0 million in standby letters
of credit financing. The potential cash borrowing
under the facility is reduced by the amount of out-
standing letters of credit. Borrowings under the facility
will be priced initially at LIBOR plus a predetermined
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amount, ranging from 1.25% to 1.75%, depending on
our consolidated leverage ratio at the time of the bor-
rowing. At December 31, 2002, LIBOR was approxi-
mately 1.4% and the applicable adjustment to LIBOR
was 1.25%. The facility requires us to pay each lender
in the consortium a commitment fee on the average
daily unused portion of their respective commitment
at a rate equal to 0.25%.

There were no direct borrowings outstanding under
the credit facility at December 31, 2002 or 2001. Let-
ters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2002 per-
taining to the credit facility were $31.5 million, result-
ing in $93.5 million available at year end for standby
letters of credit, if needed.

In connection with the credit facility, we are
required to maintain both financial and non-financial
covenants and ratios, including but not limited to min-
imum tangible net worth plus subordinated debt,
leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage ratio, earnings
before interest and taxes to interest expense ratio, total
unsubordinated debt to tangible net worth, net
income and dividends. As of December 31, 2002, we
were in compliance with our covenants. The credit
facility is secured by our accounts receivable, inven-
tory and machinery and egquipment.

As of December 31, 2001, we had a $69.0 million
long-term credit facility with a consortium of banks co-
led by Mellon and EAB. This was the facility amended
in 2002. The credit facility included $19.0 million in
five-year term debt, payable in quarterly installments
of $1.0 million, and $50.0 million in revolving debt.
Borrowings under the agreement bore interest based
on LIBOR plus an applicable margin of up to 2.00%,
depending on the consolidated leverage ratio as
defined in the agreement. Borrowings were secured
by our accounts receivable, inventories and property,
plant and equipment. Proceeds from the term debt
were used to repay existing term debt acquired in the
EDO-AIL merger. On October 31, 2001, all outstanding
term debt of $14.2 million and all outstanding revolv-
ing debt of $20.8 million were paid in full with the
proceeds of our public stock offering. At December
31, 2001, there were no borrowings under the $50.0
million revolving credit facility.

5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2007

In April 2002, we completed the offering of the Notes
and received proceeds of $133.7 million, net of $4.1
million of commissions paid. Interest payments on the
Notes are due April 15 and October 15 of each vyear,
commencing on October 15, 2002. Accrued interest
payable, included in accrued expenses on our consoli-
dated balance sheet, at December 31, 2002 was $1.5
miliion.

e —

The Notes are convertible, unless previously
redeemed or repurchased by us, at the option of the
holder at any time prior to maturity, into our common
shares at an initial conversion price of $31.26 per
share, subject to adjustment in certain events. As of
December 31, 2002, there had been no conversions.

7% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2011

During the fourth guarter of 2001, the Company
redeemed all of its outstanding Debentures. Deben-
tures with an outstanding face value of $22.1 million
were converted into 1,005,250 common shares under
the conversion rights of the Debentures and $0.2 mil-
lion face value was redeemed for cash plus accrued
interest.

Employee Stock Ownership Trust ("ESOT”) Loan

[0 July 2001, we paid in full cur direct ESOT loan obli-
gation with a balance of $4.9 million at an interest
rate of 82% of the prime-lending rate. This obligation
represented the bank borrowing by the EDO ESOT
guaranteed by us. The EDO ESOT has serviced this
obligation with the dividends received on our pre-
ferred shares and cash contributions from us. As
described above under “Acquisitions and Disposition,”
as of January 1, 2001, the AIL ESOP and the existing
EDO ESOP were merged into a single plan, and the
preferred shares issued by us and held by the EDO
ESOT were converted into 1,067,281 of our common
shares, effective March 8, 2001. As of June 30, 2001,
the merged ESQOT restructured its indirect loan from us
to extend the maturity date to December 31, 2017. As
a result of the conversion of the preferred shares, debt
service on the ESOP indirect loan will be funded by
cash contributions from us.

We believe that, for the foreseeable future, we have
adequate liquidity and sufficient capital to fund our
currently anticipated requirements for working capital,
capital expenditures, including acquisitions, research
and development expenditures, interest payments and
servicing of the ESOP indirect loan. We continue to
focus on positioning ourselves to be a significant
player in the consolidation of first-tier defense suppli-
ers and, to that end, have actively sought candidates
for strategic acquisitions. Future acquisitions may be
funded from any of the following sources: cash on
hand; borrowings under our credit facility; issuance of
our common stock or other equity securities; and/or
convertible or other debt offerings.

Commitments and Contingencies
In order to aggregate all commitments and contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2002, we have




included the following table. Our commitments under
letters of credit and advance payment and perfor-

mance bonds relate primarily to advances received on
foreign contracts. We do not expect to have to make
payments under these letters of credits or bonds since

these obligations are removed as we perform under
the related contracts. The amounts for letters of credit
and performance bonds represent the amount of com-
mitment expiration per period.

Payments Due In (in millions):

2007 and

Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 Beyond

5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2007 $  137.8 $ - $ - $ - $ - § 1378
Cperating leases 47.2 8.0 6.4 5.5 44 22.8
Letters of credit 86.9 214 2.0 62.9 02 0.4
Advance payment and performance bonds 2.3 0.6 - - - 1.7
Total § 2742 $ 300 $ 8.4 § 684 $ 48 $ 1628

Additionally. we are subject to certain legal actions
that arise out of the normal course of business. it is
our belief that the ultimate outcome of these actions
will not have a material adverse effect on our consoli-
dated financial position, results of operations or liquid-

ity.

Concentration of Sales
We conduct a significant amount of our business with
the United States Government. Domestic U.S. Govern-
ment sales, including sales to prime contractors of the
U.S. Government, accounted for approximately 75%,
69% and 63% of our total net sales for 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. In addition, sales from the Uni-
versal Exciter Upgrade program accounted for approxi-
mately 14%, 15% and 15% of our total net sales in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Although there
are currently no indications of a significant change in
the status of government funding of certain programs,
should this occur, our results of operations, financial
position and liquidity could be materially affected.
Such a change could have a significant impact on our
profitability and our stock price. This could also affect
our ability to acquire funds from our credit facility due
to covenant restrictions or from other sources. As of
December 31, 2002, one customer, a prime contrac-
tor, in addition to the U.S. Government accounted for
more than 10% of our consolidated accounts receiv-
able.

Backlog
The funded backlog of unfilled orders at December 31,
2002 increased to $375.0 million from $294.8 mil-
lion at December 31, 2001. Our backlog consists pri-
marily of current orders under long-lived, mission-criti-
cal programs of key defense platforms.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Business Combinations and Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets

in June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combi-
nations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combi-
nations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141
also includes guidance on the initial recognition and
measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets
arising from business combinations completed after
June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 prohibits the amortiza-
tion of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and requires that these assets be reviewed
for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with
definite lives will continue to be amortized over their
estimated useful lives. We adopted SFAS No. 142
effective January 1, 2002; however, the provisions
that provide for the non-amortization of goodwill were
effective July 1, 2007 for acquisitions completed after
the issuance of SFAS No. 141. Accordingly, the good-
will acgquired in connection with the purchase of
Dynamic Systems in October 2001 and Condor in
July 2002 is not being amortized.

We performed the required impairment tests of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of
January 1, 2002 using the two-step process pre-
scribed in SFAS No. 142. The first step was a review
for potential impairment, while the second step mea-
sured the amount of the impairment. The impairment
charge resulting from these transitional impairment
tests was reflected as a cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002. The
$3.4 million charge, net of an $0.8 million tax bene-
fit, occurred in the Engineered Materials segment and
is comprised of $2.2 million and $1.9 million of
impaired goodwill and trademark, respectively, related
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to the acquisition of Specialty Plastics and $0.1 mil-
lion of impaired goodwill related to the acquisition of
Zenix.

impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” which addresses financial accounting
and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Account-
ing for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the
accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations,” for a disposal of a segment of a
business. We adopted SFAS No. 144 as of January 1,
2002. The effect of the adoption of this SFAS was not
material to our operating results or financial position.

Exit or Disposal Activities
On July 30, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability be
recognized for costs associated with an exit or dis-
posal activity only when the liability is incurred. SFAS
No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for
initial measurement of liabilities related to exit or dis-
posal activities. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
The adoption of SFAS No. 146, effective January 1,
2003, did not have a material effect on our consoli-
dated financial statements.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -Transition
and Disclosure - an Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to pro-
vide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
SFAS No. 148 requires more prominent and more fre-
quent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting used for
stock-based compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results. The disclosure provi-
sions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for years ending
after December 15, 2002 and have been reflected in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. We
do not plan to voluntarily change our method of
accounting for stock-based compensation. However,
should we change our method of accounting for stock-
based compensation in the future, that change would
fall under the provisions of SFAS Nos. 123 and 148.

COMMON SHARE PRICES
EDO common shares are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange. As of February 26, 2003, there were
1,964 shareholders of record (brokers and nominees
counted as one each).

The price range in 2002 and 2001 was as follows:

2002 2001
High Low High Low
Ist Quarter 31.1500 21.9900 15.1000 7.1875
2nd Quarter 32.9000 25.9000 22.8500 12.7500
3rd Quarter 28.4900 17.5000 28.7500 14.9100
4th Quarter 22.6500 15.5000 31.9000 22.4000

DIVIDENDS

During 2002 and 2001, the Board of Directors
approved the payment of quarterly cash dividends of
$0.03 per common share. The Company’s credit facil-
ity places certain limits on the payment of cash divi-
dends.

“SAFE HARBOR” STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

The statements in this Annual Report and in oral state-
ments that may be made by representatives of the
Company relating to plans, strategies, economic per-
formance and trends and other statements that are not
descriptions of historical facts may be forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securi-
ties Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21(e) of the Secu-
rities Exchange Act of 1934, Forward-looking state-
ments are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties,
and actual results could differ materially from those
currently anticipated due to a number of factors, which
include, but are not limited to the following for each of
the types of information noted below.

U.S. and international military program sales, follow-
on procurement, contract continuance, and future pro-
gram awards, upgrades and spares support are sub-
ject to: U.S. and international military budget con-
straints and determinations; U.S. congressicnal and
international legislative body discretion; U.S. and inter-
national government administration policies and priori-
ties; changing world military threats, strategies and
missions; competition from foreign manufacturers of
platforms and equipment; NATO country determina-
tions regarding participation in common programs;
changes in U.S. and international government procure-
ment timing, strategies and practices; and the general
state of world military readiness and deployment.

Commercial satellite programs and equipment
sales, follow-on procurement, contract continuance
and future program awards, upgrades and spares sup-




port are subject to: establishment and continuance of
various consortiums for satellite constellation pro-
grams; deiay in launch dates due 1o equipment,
weather or other factors beyond our control; and
development of sufficient customer base to support a
particular satellite constellation program.

Commercial product sales are subject to: success of

convenience; decline in expected levels of sales;
underestimation of anticipated costs on specific pro-
grams; the ability to effect acquisitions; and risks
inherent in integrating recent acquisitions into our
overall structure.

Expectations of future income tax rates can be
affected by a variety of factors, including statutory

changes in Federal and state tax rates, nondeductibil-
ity of goodwili amortization and IPR&D acquired in a
stock purchase business combination and the nonde-

product development programs currently underway or
planned; competitiveness of current and future pro-
duction costs and prices and market and consumer

base development of new product programs.
Achievement of margins on sales, earnings and

cash flow can be affected by: unanticipated technical

problems; government termination of contracts for

ductibility of our noncash ESOP compensation
expense.

The Company has no obligation to update any for-

ward-fooking statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
EDG CORPGRATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Continuing Qperations:

Net Sales $ 328,876 $ 258,961 $ 206,822
Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales 240,850 189,733 151,512
Selling, general and administrative 47,584 34,013 28,206
Research and development 8,492 8,750 5,371
Write-off of purchased in-process research and development and merger-related costs 567 1,318 11,485
Defined benefit pension plan curtailment loss 1,998 - -
Post-retirement curtailment gain - (929) -
299,491 232,885 197,583
Operating Earnings 29,385 27,076 9,239
Nen-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income 1,729 415 1,881
Interest expense (6,685) (3.131) {4,319)
Other, net {95) {971) {216
{5,051} (3,187) {2,654)
Earnings from continuing operations
before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 24,334 23,889 5,585
Income tax expense (10,342) (9,210 (6.264)
Earnings from Continuing Operations
before Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle 13,992 14,679 1,321
Discontinued Operations:
Gain from discontinued satellite products business, net of tax - 273 -
Earnings from Discontinued Operations - 273 -
Earnings before Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle 13,992 14,852 1,321
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax of $790 {3,363) - -
Dividends on preferred shares - 194 881
Net Earnings Available for Common Shares $ 10,629 $ 14,758 $ 4490
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:
Basic:
Continuing operations $ 0.82 $ 1.14 $ 0.05
Discontinued operations - 0.02 -
Earnings per Commaon Share before Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 0.82 $ 1.16 $ 0.05
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax {0.20) - -
Net Earnings per Common Share-Basic $ 0.62 $ 1.16 $ 0.05
Diluted:
Continuing operations $ 0.81 $ 1.09 $ 0.05
Discontinued operations - 0.02 -
Earnings per Comman Share befers Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 0.81 $ 1.11 $ 0.05
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax {0.20} - -
Net Earnings per Common Share-Diluted $ 0.61 $ 1.11 $ 0.05

Unaudited Pro Forma Amounts Assuming Retroactive Effect of a
Change in Accounting Principle:

Net Earnings Available for Comman Shares - $ 15,329 $ 933
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share - 5 1.18 $ 0.10
Dituted Net Earnings per Common Share - $ 113 $ a.10

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31,

2002

2001

{in thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 132320 $ 57841
Restricted cash 217,347 -
Marketable securities 193 190
Accounts receivable, net 100,594 §3.407
Inventories 32,406 22,937
Deterred income tax asset, net 3.222 3.018
Prepayments and other 3.133 2,348
Total current assets 299,215 189,739
Property, plant and equipment, net 54472 62,255
Notes receivable 2,556 2810
Goodwill 61,352 22,874
Other intangible assets 11,867 325
Deferred income tax asset, net 20,439 2,553
Other assets 21,673 24974
$ 481574 $ 285,630
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current lighilities:
Accounts payable $ 19,108 3 12,743
Accrued lisbilities 55,448 34,854
Contract advances and deposits 20,277 16,702
Current portion of note payable - 453
Total current fiabilities 94,833 64,562
Long-term debt 137,800 -
Post-retirement benefits obligations 78,643 44,675
Environmental obligation 2,025 1,895
Sharehalders” equity:
Preferred shares, par value §1 per share, authorized 500,000 shares - -
Common shares, par value $7 per share, authorized 50,000,000 shares in 2002: 19,790,477 issved in 2002 and 2001 19,790 19,790
Additional paid-in capital 147,081 143,747
Retained earnings 56,328 47,744
Accumulated other comprehensive (oss, net of income tax benefit (33.899) (13.385)
Treasury shares at cost [94,322 shares in 2002 and 182,459 shares in 2001} (1.321) [2,461)
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares {18,541} {19.792)
Deferred compensation under Long-Term Incentive Plan {579) (300)
Management group receivables {593) (845)
Total shareholders' eguity 168,273 174,498
$ 481574 $ 285,630

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EauiTy
EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares

Preferred Shares

Balance at beginning of year - - $ 49 49 3 57 57

Shares converted to common shares - - {49) {49) (8) (8)

Balance at end of year - - - - 43 43
Cemmon Shares

Balance at beginning of year 18,780 19,790 15,007 15,007 8.454 8,454

Shares issued far purchase of AlL Technalogies, Inc. - - - - 6,563 6,883

Conversion of preferred shares to common shares - - 1,067 1,067 - -

Sale of stock in public offering - - 3.716 3,716 - -

Balance at end of year 19790 19,790 19,790 19,790 15,007 15,007
Additional Paid-In Capital

Balance at beginning of year 143,747 58,614 28,483

Exercise of stock aptions (486) (2,406) (183)

Income tax benefit related to stock options and Long-Term Incentive Plan 713 1,118 42

Shares used for payment of directors’ fees 64 35 (125)

Purchase of AlL Technalogies, Inc. - - 33,733

Shares used for Long-Term Incentive Plan 241 {73) 1432)

Conversion of preferred shares to common shares - {1.018) (3,227

Conversion of subordinated debentures - 8,525 -

Sale of stack in public offering - 77,775 -

Compensation expense on accelerated options - 276 -

Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares committed-to-be-released 2,792 900 323

Balance at end of year 147,091 143,747 58.614
Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of year 47,744 34,803 35,667

Net earnings 10,629 14,352 1.321

Commaon share dividends {12 cents per share} (2,048) {1,840} (1,428)

Dividends on preferred shares - (194) (881)

Tax benefit on unallocated preferred share dividends - 23 124

Balance at end of year 56,325 47,744 34,803
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Balance at beginning of year (13,385) {61} {255)

Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax - 61 194

Unrealized gain on foreign currency 86 - -

Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax {20,600) (13,385) -

Balance at end of year {33.899) {13,385) (61)
Treasury Shares at Cost

Balance at beginning of year {2,461) {182) {19,388) (1,370} (23,967) (1,694)

Shares used for exercise of stock options 952 69 4297 314 280 20

Shares used for payment of directors’ fees 78 B 122 9 251 18

Shares used for {repurchased from) Long-Term Incentive Plan 110 13 (63) (6) 813 57

Shares used for conversion of preferred shares - - - - 3.235 229

Shares used for canversion of subardinated debentures - - 13,597 1,005 - -

Repurchase of Employee Stack Ownership Plan shares - - (1,020) [134) - -

Balance at end of year {1.321} 194) [2,461) {182) (18,388) {1.370)




EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EauiTy (CONTINUED)

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
{in thousands)
Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares
Employee Stock Ownership Trust Loan Dbligation
Balance at beginning of year - (5,781 (7.429)
Repayments made during year - 890 1,648
Restructuring of EDO Employee Stock Ownership Plan - 4,891 -
Balance at end of year - - {5,781)
Deferred Compensation Under Long-Term Incentive Plan
Balance at beginning of year {300) {423) {769)
Shares used for Long-Term Incentive Plan (480) (148) {392)
Amortization of Long-Term Incentive Plan deferred compensation
expense 201 271 738
Balance at end of year (579) {300) (423)
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan Compensation
Balance at beginning of year {19,792) (15,782 -
Purchase of AlL Technologies, Inc. - - (17,302)
Restructuring of EDO Employee Stock Ownership Plan - (4,891} -
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares committed-to-be-released 1,251 881 1,520
Balance at end of year (18,541) 19,792) {15,782
Management Group Receivables
Balance at beginning of year (845) (1,220) -
Purchase of AlL Technalogies, Inc. - - (1,220
Payments received on management loans 252 375 -
Balance at end of year (593) (845) (1,220}
Total Shareholders’ Equity $ 168,273 $ 174,498 $ 65,818
Comprehensive {Loss} Income
Net earnings § 10629 § 14982 $ 1,321
Additional minimum pension liability, net of income tax benefit of
$14,316 in 2002 and $3,302 in 2001 {20,600) (13,385) -
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of income tax expense of
$31in 2001 and $100 in 2000 - 81 194
Unrealized gain on foreign currency 86 - -
Comprehensive (loss] income & (9,865] 3 1,628 $ 1,515

See accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
{in thousands)
Operating Activities:
Earnings from operations 10,6289 § 14879 ] 1,321
Adjustments ta earnings to arrive at cash provided by operations:
Depreciation 10,365 9,686 7,740
Amortization 956 1,710 1,701
Deferred tax (benefit] expense (2,984} 5941 1,292
Write-off of purchased in-process research and development 150 - 6,700
Real estate tax assessment adjustment - 7,846 -
Bad debt expense 407 220 287
Gain on repurchase of debentures - (171 {215)
Loss {gain] on sale of property, plant and equipment 53 (76} n
Gain on sale of marketable securities - {81) -
Deferred compensation expense 201 271 738
Non-cash Employee Stock Ownership Plan compensation expense 4,043 1,781 1.843
Dividends on unallocated Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares 312 80 -
Non-cash compensation expense - 276 -
Common shares issued for directors’ fees 142 157 126
Income tax benefit from stock options and Long-Term Ineentive Plan 713 1,118 42
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 3,383 - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable 2,519) {10,753) (4,388)
Inventories (2,926) 2,033 (2,214)
Prepayments and other assets 220 (629) {1,825)
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other 5217 (4,974) (11,923}
Contract advances and deposits 3,575 {15,017) 8,116
Cash provided by operations 31.917 14,097 9,334
Investing Activities:
Purchase of plant and equipment (7,093) (14,298) (3,861}
Payments received on notes receivable 350 347 168
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1 280 4568
Purchase of marketahle securities {3) {59) (818)
Sale or redemption of marketable securities - 14,455 2,541
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations - - 8,641
Restricted cash (27,347) - -
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (59,024} (13,938) (15,004}
Cash used by investing activities (93,116) (13,213} (3,764)




EDO CoRPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows (CONTINUED)

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Financing Activities:
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes 137,800 - -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 486 1.892 97
Proceeds from management group receivables 252 375 -
Proceeds from sale of stock in public offering, net of expenses - 81491 -
Borrowings under revolver - 20,800 9,000
Repayments of borrowings under revelver - {20,800} (18,000)
Repayments of long-term debt - {17,300 (3,570}
Repurchase of debentures - (3,184) (1.879)
Purchase of treasury shares - (1,020 -
Payment of EDD ESOP loan obligation - (4,891) -
Payment made on note payable {500) {600} {500}
Payment of common share cash dividends {2,360} {1,820} (1,428)
Payment of preferred share cash dividends - (194) (881)
Cash provided [used) by financing activities 135,678 54,749 117,161
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 74479 55,633 {11,581)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 57,841 2,208 13,799
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 132,320 $ 57,841 §$ 2,208
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 3,878 $ 2,166 $ 3,500
Income taxes $ 14063 $ 5913 $ 3,758

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DecemBer 31, 2002, 2001 Anp 2000
EDO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(n Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a} Principles of Consolidation and Business

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of EDO Corporation and all wholly-owned
subsidiaries (the “Company”). All significant intercom-
pany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

The Company operates in three segments: Defense,
Communications and Space Products, and Engineered
Materials. The Company discontinued its former satel-
lite products business (Barnes Engineering Company)
in 1999.

(b) Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2002, there is restricted cash of
$27.3 million, which relates to amounts collateralizing
the outstanding letters of credit assumed as part of
the acquisition of Condor Systems, Inc. (Note 2). As
the letters of credit expire or are cancelled, collateral is
released. On November 8, 2002, the Company
increased its credit facility from $69.0 million to
$140.0 million and again, on December 20, 2002,
from $140.0 million to $200.0 million, which wiill
allow the Company to replace the letters of credit
under the amended facility and release the restricted
cash.

(c) Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all securities with an original
maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisi-
tion to be cash equivalents.

(d) Revenue Recognition

Sales under long-term, fixed-price contracts, including
pro-rata profits, are generally recorded based on the
relationship of costs incurred to date to total projected
final costs or, alternatively, as deliveries and other
milestones are achieved or services are provided.
These projections are revised throughout the lives of
the contracts. Adjustments to profits resulting from
such revisions are made cumulative to the date of
change and may affect current period earnings.

Gross profit is affected by a variety of factors,
including the mix of products, systems and services
sold or provided, production efficiencies, price compe-
tition and general economic conditions. Estimated
losses on long-term contracts are recorded when iden-
tified. Sales under cost reimbursement contracts are

recorded as costs are incurred. Sales on other than
long-term contract orders (principally commercial
products) are recorded as shipments are made.

(e) Inventories

Inventories under long-term contracts and programs
reflect all accumulated production costs, including fac-
tory overhead, initial tooling and other related costs
(including general and administrative expenses relat-
ing to certain of the Company’s defense contracts),
less the portion of such costs charged to cost of sales.
Inventory costs in excess of amounts recoverable
under contracts and which relate to a specific technol-
ogy or application and which may not have alternative
uses are charged to cost of sales when such circum-
stances are identified. All other inventories are stated
at the lower of cost (principally first-in, first-out
method) or market.

From time to time, the Company manufactures cer-
tain products prior to receiving firm contracts in antici-
pation of future demand. Such costs are inventoried
and are incurred to help maintain stable and efficient
production schedules.

Several factors may influence the sale and use of
the Company’s inventories, including the decision to
exit a product line, technological change, new product
development and/or revised estimates of future prod-
uct demand. If inventory is determined to be overval-
ued due to one or more of the above factors, the
Company would recognize such loss in value at the
time of such determination.

Under the contractual arrangements by which
progress payments are received, the United States
Government has a title to or a security interest in the
inventories identified with related contracts.

(f) Long-Lived Assets, Other than Goodwill and Other
Intangibles
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.
Depreciation and amortization have been provided pri-
marily using the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improve-
ments are amortized over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or their respective lease periods.
In those cases where the Company determines that
the useful life should be shortened, the Company
would depreciate the net book value in excess of sal-
vage value over its revised remaining useful life
thereby increasing depreciation expense. Factors such




as technological advances. changes to the Company's
business model, changes in the Company's capital
strategy, changes in the planned use of equipment,
fixtures, software or changes in the planned use of
facilities could result in shortened useful lives.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted cash
flows, excluding interest, is less than the asset’s carry-
ing value, the Company recognizes an impairment
loss, measured as the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the asset.

The estimate of cash flow is based upon, among
other things, certain assumptions about expected
future operating performance. The Company's esti-
mates of undiscounted cash flow may differ from
actual cash flow due to such factors as those listed
above.

Costs associated with the acquisition and develop-
ment of software for internal use are recognized in
accordance with Statement of Position ("SOP”) No.
98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” In 2002 and
2001, the Company capitalized approximately $0.3
million and $1.7 million, respectively, of such costs.
These costs are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over a period of four years.

Deferred financing costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the related financing.
The unamortized balances of $5.5 million and $0.5
million are included in other assets at December 31,
2002 and 2007, respectively.

(g) Business Combinations and Goodwill and QOther
Intangible Assets
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB"} issued Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standard ("SFAS”) Nos. 141, "Business Combina-
tions,” and 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combi-
nations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141
also includes guidance on the initial recognition and
measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets
arising from business combinations completed after
June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 prohibits the amortiza-
tion of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and requires that these assets be reviewed
for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with
definite lives will continue to be amortized over their
estimated useful lives. SFAS No. 142 was adopted by

the Company effective January 1, 2002; however, the
provisions that provide for the non-amortization of
goodwill were effective July 1, 2001 for acquisitions
completed after the issuance of SFAS No. 141. Accord-
ingly, the goodwill acquired in connection with the
purchase of Dynamic Systems, Inc. in October 2001
and Condor Systems, Inc. in July 2002 is not being
amortized.

Impairment indicators include, among other condi-
tions, cash flow deficits, an historic or anticipated
decline in revenue or operating profit, adverse legal or
regulatory developments, accumulation of costs signif-
icantly in excess of amounts originally expected to
acquire the asset and a material decrease in the fair
value of some or ali of the assets.

The Company performed the required impairment
tests of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets
as of January 1, 2002, using the two-step process pre-
scribed in SFAS No. 142. The first step was a review
for potential impairment, while the second step mea-
sured the amount of the impairment. The impairment
charge resulting from these transitional impairment
tests was reflected as a cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002. The
$3.4 million charge, net of a tax benefit of $0.8 mit-
lion, occurred in the Engineered Materials segment
and is comprised of $2.2 million and $1.8 million of
impaired goodwill and trademark, respectively, related
to the acquisition of Specialty Plastics and $0.1 mil-
lion of impaired goodwill related to the acqguisition of
Zenix. In the case of Zenix, the trend in sales and earn-
ings performance has been lower than expected
resulting in the impairment of the entire goodwill car-
rying value. In the case of Specialty Plastics, the fair
value of this reporting unit was estimated using a dis-
counted cash flow analysis, also resulting in an impair-
ment loss of the entire goodwill carrying value.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by
segment for the year ended December 31, 2002 are
as follows:

Communi-
cations
and Space Engineered
Defense Products Materials  Total
(in thousands)

Balance as of

January 1, 2002 § 20600 S - 8 22714 § 22874
Impairment loss - - (2,274) (2,274)
Acquisition of Condor

Systems, Inc. 37,060 3,692 - 40,752
Balance as of

December 31,2002 § 57660 $§ 3692 § - § 861352
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Summarized below are intangible assets subject to
amortization as of December 31:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Capitalized non-compete agreements related to

the acquisition of Dynamic Systems, Inc. 3 200 § 200
Capitalized technical rights related 1o the
acquisition of Zenix - 300
Purchased technologies related to the
acquisition of Condor Systems, Inc. 11,648 -
Other intangible assets related to the
acquisition of Condor Systems, Inc. 916 -
12,764 500
Less accumulated amortizaticn (897} (175)

$ 11867 § 325

The non-compete agreements and the other intan-
gible assets are being amortized on a straightline
basis over a two-year period. The purchased technolo-
gies are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
an eight-year period. The amortization expense for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
amounted to $0.3 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 mil-
lion, respectively. Amortization expense for 2003,
2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and thereafter related to
these intangible assets are estimated to be $2.0 mil-
lion, $1.7 million, $1.5 million, $1.5 million, $1.5 mil-
lion and $3.7 million, respectively.

Since the total trademark carrying amount of $1.9
million was written off in 2002 as part of the cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting principle, there
are no intangible assets other than goodwill not sub-
ject to amortization as of December 31, 2002.

Net earnings for the year ended December 31,
2001 included goodwill and trademark amortization
expense of approximately $0.9 million before tax.
Excluding this amount net of tax would have resulted
in basic net earnings per common share and diluted
net earnings per common share of $1.18 and $1.13,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2001.
Net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2000
included goodwill and trademark amortization
expense of $1.0 million before tax. Excluding this
amount net of tax would have resulted in basic net
earnings per common share and diluted net earnings
per common share of $0.10 and $0.10, respectively,
for the year ended December 31, 2000.

(h) Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to differ-
ences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be realized or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

(i) Treasury Shares

Common shares held as treasury shares are recorded
at cost, with issuances from treasury recorded at aver-
age cost. Treasury shares issued for directors’ fees are
recorded as an expense for an amount equal to the
fair market value of the common shares on the issu-
ance date.

(i) Financial Instruments

The net carrying value of notes receivable approxi-
mates fair value based on current rates for comparable
commercial mortgages. The fair value of the Com-
pany's b.26% Convertible Subordinated Notes due
2007 (the "Notes”) at December 31, 2002 approxi-
mates its carrying value based on recent market trans-
actions. The fair value of the environmental obligation
approximates its carrying value since it has been dis-
counted. The fair values of all other financial instru-
ments approximate book values because of the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

(k) Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities to prepare these consolidated
financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.
Actual results could differ from these and other esti-
mates.

() Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensa-
tion plans in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board ("APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” and related interpretations.
Under APB No. 25, because the exercise price of the
Company’s stock options is set equal to the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no
compensation expense is recognized.

{m) Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133,

“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities” and on June 15, 2000, issued SFAS No.

138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments




and Certain Hedging Activities - an Amendment to
FASB Statement No. 133.” These statements establish
methods of accounting for derivative financial instru-
ments and hedging activities related to those instru-
ments as well as other hedging activities. The Com-
pany adopted these statements in the first quarter of
2001. The effect of the adoption of these statements
was not material to the Company’s operating results
or financial position.

(n) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year
presentations to conform to current year presentations.

{0) New Accounting Standards

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” which addresses financial accounting
and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Account-
ing for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the
accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations,” for a
disposal of a segment of a business. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 144 as of January 1, 2002. The
effect of the adoption of this SFAS was not material to
the Company’s operating results or financial position.

On July 30, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 148 requires that a liability be
recognized for costs associated with an exit or dis-
posal activity only when the liability is incurred. SFAS
No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for
initial measurement of liabilities related to exit or dis-
posal activities. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
The adoption of SFAS No. 146, effective January 1,
20083, did not have a material effect on the Com-
pany’s operating results or financial position.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -Transition
and Disclosure - an Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 123." SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to pro-
vide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
SFAS No. 148 requires more prominent and more fre-
quent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting used for
stock-based compensation and the effect of the

method used on reported results. The disclosure provi-
sions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for years ending
after December 15, 2002 and accordingly are
reflected in Note 14. Presently, the Company does not
plan to voluntarily change its method of accounting
for stock-based compensation. However, should the
Company change its method of accounting for stock-
based compensation in the future, that change would
fall under the provisions of SFAS Nos. 123 and 148.

(2) Acquisitions

On July 26, 2002, the Company acquired substan-
tially all of the assets of Condor Systems, Inc., a pri-
vately-held defense electronics company and its
domestic subsidiary (together, "Condor”) for $61.9 mil-
lion in cash, in addition to transaction costs of $4.1
million, and the assumption of certain normal
employee benefit obligations, certain trade and sup-
plier payables and certain other accrued liabilities pri-
marily related to contract loss reserves. In addition, the
Company assumed approximately $28.0 million of
outstanding letters of credit and deposited $5.0 mil-
lion into an escrow account to be released upon set-
tlement of the closing Condor balance sheet. Condor
had been operating under protection of Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The acquisition is expected
to expand the Company’'s electronic warfare business
in the areas of reconnaissance and surveillance sys-
tems. The acquisition was accounted for as a pur-
chase and, accordingly. Condor’s operating results are
included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements since the acquisition date. Condor became
part of the Company’s Defense and Communications
and Space Products segments.

Associated with the acquisition and included in
operating earnings for 2002 is $0.6 million of merger-
related costs, of which $0.2 million represents the
write-off of purchased in-process research and devel-
opment ("IPR&D"). This IPR&D was determined by an
independent third party appraiser to not have reached
technological feasibility and to not have alternative
future use. The development project related to detect-
ing and locating weak modulated continuous wave
signals.

Unaudited pro forma results of operations, assum-
ing the acquisition of Condor had been completed at
the beginning of each period, which include adjust-
ments to net sales, cost of sales, interest income and
expense, amortization expense, purchased IPR&D and
other merger-related costs, income tax expense and
assuming a retroactive effect of a change in account-
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ing principle upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 are as
follows:

2002 2001
(unaudited, in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Net sales § 383057  § 337,048
Net earnings {loss) before cumulative effect of

a change in accounting principle § 11360 § (25794)
Net earnings {loss) available for common

shares $§ 7997 3 (29,569)
Diluted earnings {loss) per common share $ 046§ (231

The pro forma results of operations are not neces-
sarily indicative of the actual results of operations that
would have occurred had this acquisition been com-
pleted at the beginning of the periods, or of the
results which may occur in the future.

The following table summarizes the allocation of
the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed at the date of acquisition. The excess of
the purchase price over the net assets acquired
recorded as goodwill, IPR&D and other intangible

assets is deductible for tax purposes over 15 vyears.

At July 26, 2002
{in thousands)

Current assets $  29.964
Property, plant and equipment 5,543
Goodwill 40,752
Purchased in-process research and development 150
Purchased technologies {eight-year life) 11,648
Other intangible assets subject to amartization (two-

year life) 916
Other assets 75
Curremt liabilities {22,907)
Net assets acquired $ 66,142

In October 2001, the Company acquired all of the
stock of Dynamic Systems, Inc., a privately-held com-
pany based in Alexandria, Virginia, which provides pro-
fessional and information technology services prima-
rily to the Department of Defense and other
government agencies. The acquisition is expected to
strengthen and expand the range of services the Com-
pany offers to both existing and new customers. The
Company paid $13.7 million, including transaction
costs and subseguent to a $0.2 million reduction in
the purchase price, and accounted for the acquisition
as a purchase. Accordingly, the operating results of
Dynamic Systems, Inc. have been included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements since
the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase
price over the fair market value of net assets acquired
was approximately $12.2 million, which is not deduct-
ible for income tax purposes. On a pro forma basis,

had the acquisition taken place as of the beginning of
each respective year, the results of operations would
not have been materially affected for 2001 and 2000.

The following table summarizes the allocation of
the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed at the date of acquisition.

At Octoher 8, 2001
(in thousands)

Current assets $ 3,250
Property, plant and eguipment 363
Goodwill 12,191
Other intangible assets subject to amortization

{twao-year life) 200
(ther assats 214
Current liabilities {2,515)
Net assets acquired $ 13,703

In April 2000, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company merged with AIL Technologies, Inc. ("AIL")
(the "EDO-AIL merger”). In connection with the EDO-
AlL merger, the Company issued 6,553,194 of its
common shares valued at $39.4 million, and made
cash payments aggregating $13.3 million in exchange
for all of the outstanding common and preferred
shares of AlL. In addition, the Company incurred $2.7
million of transaction costs. The merger was
accounted for as a purchase and is included in the
Company’s results of operations since the date of
acquisition. The transaction resulted in goodwill of
$3.6 million.

Associated with this merger and included in operat-
ing earnings in 2000 are a $6.7 million write-off of
purchased IPR&D, described more fully below, $1.6
million of severance costs and $3.3 million of other
merger-related costs. Such costs are included in write-
off of purchased in-process research and development
and merger-related costs in the accompanying consol-
idated statements of earnings. The $1.5 million of sev-
erance costs pertain to an AlL employee group of
approximately 200, all of which was paid as of
December 31, 2001.

The IPR&D related to a project that had not
reached technolegical feasibility and that had no alter-
native future uses. The amount allocated to the
project was expensed as of the date of acquisition.
The development project related to a generic satellite
subsystem called a Ku-Ku Band Down Converter for a
fixed satellite service market. The converter represents
a single channel providing signal conversion from
uplink frequencies in the 14GHz range to the downlink
frequencies in the 12GHz range. The income
approach was utilized for the valuation analysis of the
IPR&D. This approach focused on the income-produc-
ing capability of the asset, which was based on rela-



tive market sizes, growth factors and expected trends
in technology. This approach also included analysis of
the stage of completion of the project, estimating the
costs to develop the purchased in-process technology
into commercially viable products, estimating the
resulting net cash flows from such projects and dis-
counting the net cash flows back to their present
value using a rate commensurate with the relative risk
levels. The rate used in discounting the net cash flows
from the IPR&D was 26%.

The efforts then required to develop the in-process
technology of this project into commercially viable
products principally related to the completion of plan-
ning, designing, prototyping, and testing functions
that are necessary to establish that the down con-
verter produced will meet its design specifications,
including technical performance features and function
requirements. At the time of the EDO-AIL merger, it
was estimated that 90% of the development effort
had been completed and the remaining development
effort would take approximately six months to com-
plete, with a cost of approximately $1.0 million. This
project is now completed resulting in sales in 2001 of
Ku-Ku Band Converters.

Unaudited pro forma resuits of operations, assum-
ing the EDO-AIL merger had been completed at the
beginning of 2000, which include adjustments to
interest expense, amortization expense and income
tax expense are as follows:

2000
(unaudited, in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Net sales from continuing operations $ 250,080
Net loss from cantinuing operations

available for common shares $ {1,861}
Basic loss per common share from

continuing operations $ {0.18)

The pro forma results of operations are not neces-
sarily indicative of the actual results of operations that
would have occurred had this merger been completed
at the beginning of the period. or of the results which
may occur in the future.

In November 1999, the Company acquired the out-
standing stock of M. Technologies Inc., an integrator of
aircraft weapons and avionics systems, for $3.0 mik
lion in cash paid at closing and a $1.5 million note to
be paid over three years. The note payable (fully paid
as of December 31, 2002 and $0.5 miilion at Decem-
ber 31, 2001) has been recorded at its present value
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at
an interest rate of 8%. The acquisition has been
accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the

operating results of M. Technologies have been
included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements since the date of acquisition. The excess of
the purchase price over the fair market value of net
assets acquired was approximately $4.4 million.

Subsequent Events (Unaudited)
In February 2003, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired all of the stock of Advanced Engi-
neering & Research Associates, Inc. ("AERA"), a pri-
vately-held company located in Alexandria, Virginia,
which provides professional and information technol-
ogy services primarily to the Department of Defense
and other government agencies. The acquisition is
expected to strengthen and expand the range of such
services the Company offers. The preliminary purchase
price was $38.0 million, which included an amount
placed in escrow. The acquisition will be accounted for
as a purchase, and the operating results of AERA will
be included in the Company's consolidated financial
statements from the date of the acquisition.

In March 2003, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired all of the stock of Darlington, Inc.,
a privately-held defense communications company
based in Alexandria, Virginia, which designs, manufac-
tures and supports military communications equip-
ment and information networking systems. The acqui-
sition is expected to enhance the Company’s existing
positions on long-range platforms and programs
across the U.S. military services and in particular the
U.S. Marine Corps. The preliminary purchase price
was $28.5 million, which included an amount placed
in escrow. The acquisition will be accounted for as a
purchase, and the operating results of Darlington, Inc.
will be included in the Company's consolidated finan-
cial statements from the date of the acquisition.

(3) Discontinued Operations

In November 1999, the Board of Directors of the Com-
pany approved the decision to sell its satellite products
business (Barnes Engineering Company), which sale
was completed in January 2000. The Company
agreed to indemnify the buyer for certain contract-
related costs originally estimated at $2.3 million. In
2001, a change in the estimate of remaining costs to
be incurred resulted in earhings from discontinued
operations of $0.3 million, net of income taxes.

The revenues, costs and expenses, assets and liabil-
ities, and cash flows associated with the satellite prod-
ucts business have been excluded from the respective
captions in the accompanying consclidated financial
statements.
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(4) Marketable Securities

The Company determines the appropriate classifica-
tion of securities at the time of purchase and reevalu-
ates such designation as of each balance sheet date.
All marketable securities are classified as available-for-
sale securities. Available-for-sale securities are carried
at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net
of tax, reported as a separate component of share-
holders’ equity. Realized gains and losses, interest and
dividends and declines in value judged to be other-
than-temporary declines are included in interest
income (expense). The cost of securities sold is based
on the specific identification method. At December
31, 2002 and 2001, the marketable securities balance
represents amounts in mutual funds.

(5) Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts receivable included $43.0 million and
$39.1 million at December 31, 2002 and 20071,
respectively, of unbilled revenues. Substantially all of
the unbilled balances at December 31, 2002 will be
billed and are expected to be collected during 2003.
Total billed receivables due from the United States
Government, either directly or as a subcontractor to a
prime contractor with the Government, were $31.0
million and $26.2 million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Notes receivable at December 31, 2002 include
$1.9 million which relates to the sale of the Com-
pany’s College Point facility in January 1996, of which
$0.4 million is included in current assets. The notes
are due in equal quarterly amounts through Septem-
ber 2004 with a final payment of $1.3 million due on
December 31, 2004 and bear interest at 7% per
annum. The notes receivable are secured by a mort-
gage on the facility. Also included in notes receivable
at December 31, 2002 is $1.1 million related to the
sale in June 2000 of certain parcels of land and a
building at the Company's Deer Park facility, of which
$0.1 million is included in current assets. The gain on

the sale was not material as the carrying value approx-

imated the sales value.

(6) Inventories
Inventories are summarized by major classification as
follows at December 31:

(7} Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

The Company's property, plant and equipment at
December 31 and their related useful lives are sum-
marized as follows:

2002 2001
(in thousands) Life
Land $§ 18080 $ 18,080
Buildings and improvements 33,842 26,297 10-30 years
Machinery and equipment 44 585 45,271 3-19 years
Software 2,031 1,723 4 years
Leasehold improvements 13,150 10,934 Lease terms

111,688 102,305

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (47,216) (40,050}
§ B4472 § 52255

(8) Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following at
December 31:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Employee compensation and benefits $ 16,744 % 13,664
Deferred revenue and accrual for future costs

related to acquired contracts 11,562 -
Income taxes payable 3.991 5,096
Accrued interest 1,782 -
Warranty 1,622 803
Current portion of environmental obligation 250 395
Indemnification liability - 80
Other 19,497 14,616

$ 05448 § 34654

2002 2001
(in thousands)
Raw material and supplies $ 7804 § 6,538
Wark-in-process 22,561 14,680
Finished goods 2,041 1,718

$ 32406 5 22837

(9) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facility

Credit Facility
At December 31, 2002, the Company has a $200.C
million credit facility with a consortium of banks, led
by Citibank, N.A. as the administrative agent, Fleet
National Bank as the syndication agent and Wachovia
Bank, N.A. as the documentation agent. The facility
expires in November 2005 and amended the $69.0
million credit facility in place at December 31, 2001. In
connection with the amended facility, $1.2 million of
deferred finance costs are included in other assets on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and
are being amortized using the straight-line method
over the term of the agreement.

The credit facility provides sub-limits of borrowing
up to $125.0 million for acquisition-related financing
and up to $125.0 million in standby letters of credit
financing. The potential cash borrowing under the
facility is reduced by the amount of outstanding letters




of credit. Borrowings under the facility will be priced
initially at LIBOR plus a predetermined amount, rang-
ing from 1.25% to 1.75%., depending on the Com-
pany's consolidated leverage ratio at the time of the
borrowing. At December 31, 2002, LIBOR was approx-
imately 1.4% and the applicable adjustment to LIBOR
was 1.25%. The facility requires the Company to pay
each lender in the consortium a commitment fee on
the average daily unused portion of their respective
commitment at a rate equal to 0.25%.

There were no direct borrowings outstanding under
the credit facility at December 31, 2002 or 2001. Let-
ters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2002 per-
taining to the credit facility were $31.5 million, result-
ing in $93.5 million available for additional letters of
credit, if needed.

In connection with the credit facility, the Company
is required to maintain both financial and non<inancial
covenants and ratios, including but not limited to min-
imum tangible net worth plus subordinated debt,
leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage ratio, earnings
before interest and taxes to interest expense ratio, total
unsubordinated debt to tangible net worth, net
income and dividends. As of December 31, 2002, the
Company was in compliance with its covenants. The
credit facility is secured by the Company's accounts
receivables, inventory and machinery and equipment.

5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2007
In April 2002, the Company completed its offering of
$137.8 million of 5.26% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2007 and received $133.7 million, net of
commissions paid. Interest payments on the Notes are
due April 15 and October 15 of each year, commenc-
ing on October 15, 2002. Accrued interest payable,
included in accrued liabilities on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet, at December 31, 2002
was $1.5 million,

In connection with the offering of the Notes, there
are $4.1 million of unamortized debt issuance costs
at December 31, 2002, which are included in cther
assets on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet and are being amortized using the straight-line
method through April 2007.

The Notes are convertible, unless previously
redeemed or repurchased by the Company, at the
option of the holder at any time prior to maturity, into
the Company's common stock at an initial conversion
price of $31.26 per share, subject to adjustment in
certain events. As of December 31, 2002, there had
been no such conversions.

7% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2011
During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company
redeemed all of its outstanding 7% Convertible Subor-
dinated Debentures due 2011 (the “Debentures”). As a
result of the redemption, $22.1 million face value of
the Debentures were converted into 1,005,250 com-
mon shares and $0.2 million face value were
redeemed for cash. During 2001, the Company also
purchased $3.4 million of the Debentures for $3.2
million and recognized a gain of $0.2 million, which is
included in other non-operating income in the accom-
panying consolidated statement of earnings.

(10) Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust

The Company sponsored two employee stock owner-
ship plans: the existing EDO Employee Stock Owner-
ship Plan ("EDO ESOP"); and the AlL Employee Stock
Ownership Plan (“"AlL ESOP") that was acquired in
connection with the EDO-AIL merger. These two plans
were merged into a single plan effective as of January
1. 2001 ("merged ESOP"), and the preferred shares
from the EDO ESOP were converted into 1,067,281
common shares as of March 8, 2001. The merged
ESOP provides retirement benefits to substantially all
employeses.

Prior to the EDO-AIL merger, the EDO ESOP was
being accounted for under Statement of Position
("SOP”) No. 76-3, “Accounting Practices for Certain
Employee Stock Ownership Plans” and the AIL ESOP
was being accounted for under SOP No. 93-6,
“Employers” Accounting for Employee Stock Owner-
ship Plans.” The merged ESOP is being accounted for
under SOP No. 93-6. Accordingly, 328,993 unallo-
cated shares of common stock related to the EDO
ESOP and now held by the merged ESOP are not con-
sidered outstanding for the purposes of computing
earnings per share in 2002 and 2001, respectively. In
prior years, such shares were considered outstanding
in accordance with SOP No. 76-3.

As of June 30, 2001, the merged ESOP restruc-
tured its indirect loan from the Company to extend the
maturity date to December 31, 2017. As part of this
restructuring, the EDO ESOP bank loan obligation was
paid in full on July 30, 2001.

As quarterly payments are made under the indirect
loan, unallocated common shares in the merged
ESOP are committed-to-be-released. The allocation to
participants is based on (i) a match of 50% of the first
6% of the participants' 401(k) contributions; (i} $600
per participant; and (iii) any remaining distribution is
based on participants' relative compensation. The cost
basis of the unearned/unallocated shares is initially
recorded as a reduction to shareholders’ equity. Com-
pensation expense is recorded based on the market
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value of the Company’s common shares as they are
committed-to-be-released. The difference between the
market value and the cost basis of the shares is
recorded as additional paid-in capital. Dividends on
unallocated shares are recorded as compensation
expense.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, non-cash
ESOP compensation expense recorded by the Com-
pany amounted to $4.0 million, $ 1.8 million and $1.8
million. At December 31, 2002. there are 2,500,188
unearned/unallocated shares which have an aggre-
gate market value of $52.0 million and 1,751,605 allo-
cated shares. Total principal and interest payments
made in 2002 and 2001 under the merged ESOP
indirect loan amounted to $1.7 million and $1.1 mik
lion, respectively.

A discussion cf each plan prior to the merger fol-
lows.

EDO ESOP
During 1988, the EDO Employee Stock Ownership
Trust ("/EDO ESOT") purchased 89,772 preferred
shares from the Company for approximately $19.2
million. The preferred shares were being allocated to
employees on the basis of compensation. The pre-
ferred shares provided for dividends of 8% per annum,
which were deductible by the Company for Federal
and state income tax purposss. The tax benefit that
was attributable to unallocated preferred shares was
reflected as an increase to retained earnings. Each
unallocated preferred share was convertible at its
stated conversion rate into 10 common shares. Allo-
cated preferred shares were convertible at the greater
of the stated conversion rate or the fair value of each
preferred share divided by the current market price of
each common share. The EDO ESOT purchased the
preferred shares from the Company using the pro-
ceeds of a bank borrowing guaranteed by the Com-
pany. The EDO ESQOT serviced this obligation with the
dividends received on the preferred shares and any
additional contributions from the Company as
required. Principal and interest payments on the note
of the EDO ESOT were to be made in quarterly install-
ments through 2003. Interest was charged at 82% of
the prime lending rate. During 2001 and 2000,
respectively, the Company’s cash contributions and
dividends on the preferred shares were used to repay
principal of $0.8 million and $1.6 million and pay
interest of $0.2 million and $0.5 million. During 2001
and 2000, respectively, cash contributions of $0.7

million and $1.2 million were made to the EDO ESOP
and were recorded as compensation expense.

The EDQO ESOT's borrowing guaranteed by the
Company was reflected as a liability on the consoli-
dated balance sheets with an equal amount as a
reduction to shareholders’ equity, offsetting the
increase in the capital stock accounts. As the principal
portion of the note was repaid, the liability and the
EDQ ESQOT loan obligation, included in shareholder’s
equity, were reduced concurrently.

AIL ESOP
The AIL ESOP held AIL common shares prior to the
EDO-AIL merger which were converted to EDO com-
mon shares. The cost basis of the unearned AlL ESOP
shares were recorded as a reduction to shareholders’
equity, offsetting the increase in the capital stock
accounts. As AIL ESOP shares were committed-to-be-
released to plan participants, the earned AlL ESOP
shares were released from the unearned Al ESOP
shares account based on the cost of the shares to the
AIL ESOP. The allocation to participants was based on
(i) $600 per employee at the market value of the
common shares and (ii) pro rata based on compensa-
tion. Compensation expense was recorded based on
the market value of the Company’s common shares.
The Company recorded the difference between the
market value of the shares committed-to-be-released
and the cost of these shares to the AlL ESOP to addi-
tional paid-in capital.

In 2000, the Company recorded compensation
expense of approximately $1.8 million subsequent 1o
the EDO-AIL merger and contributed approximately
$2.0 million to the AIL ESOP to cover the AIL ESOP’s
indirect loan service requirements.

(11)  Income Taxes

The 2002, 2001 and 2000 significant components of
the provision for income taxes attributable to continu-
ing operations are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)

Federal

Current 8 10859 § 2345 % 3.042
Deferred (2,503) 5,598 1313
$ 8,156 § 7,943 $ 4,355

State
Current 3 2667 § 1,097 $ 683
Deferred (481) 170 226
$ 2186 § 1,267 $ 908
Total § 10342 § 9210 ¢ 5,264




The reconciliation of income tax attributable to con-
tinuing operations computed at the U.S. Federal tax
rate to income tax expense is:

Percent of Pretax Earnings
2002 2001 2000

Tax at statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State taxes, net of Federal benefit 5.0 3.0 3.6

Write-off of purchased in-process - - 35.6
research and development

Non-deductible goodwill amortization - 10 39

Non-cash ESOP compensation 3.0 05 1.0
expense

Foreign sales benefit {1.4) 11.4) (2.1}

Other, net 0.9 05 29

Effective income 1ax rate 42.5% 38.6% 79.9%

The significant components of deferred tax assets
and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets
Retirement plans’ additional minimum

liability $ 23617 § 3,302
Post-retirement benefits obligation other

than pensions 5,001 5,091
Deferred revenue 980 873
Deferred compensation 2,843 2,612
Inventory valuation 2,242 1777
Other 99 281
Total defesred tax assets 34,782 18,936
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 7.946 7.964
Prepaid pension asset 3,175 5619
Identifishle intangible asset - 782
Total deferred tax liabilities 11121 14,365
Net deferred tax asset § 23661 § 5,571

(12)  Shareholders’ Equity
On October 31, 2001, the Company completed the
public sale of 3,716,100 of its common shares and
received net proceeds of approximately $81.5 million.
At various times beginning in 1983, the Board of
Directors has authorized and subsequently increased
by amendments, a plan to purchase an aggregate
amount of 4,190,000 common shares. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2002, the Company had acquired approxi-
mately 4,091,000 common shares in open market
transactions at prevailing market prices. Approximately
4,026,000 of these shares have been used for various
purposes, including: conversion of preferred shares;
contributions of common shares to the EDO ESOP;
grants pursuant to the Company’s Long-Term Incentive
Plans; payment of directors’ fees; partial payment of a

50% stock dividend; and stock options exercised. As
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, the
Company held 94,322 and 182,459 common shares
in its treasury for future use.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had reserved
6,161,473 authorized and unissued common shares
for stock option and long-term incentive plans and
conversion of the Notes.

(13)  Earnings Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of
basic and diluted earnings per share:

2002 2001 2000
{in thousands)

Numerator:
Earnings from continuing
operations available for
common shares for basic

calculation $10,629 $ 14485 § 440
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible debentures - 998 -
Convertible preferred shares - 5 118
Numerator for diluted
calculation $§ 10629 § 15488 § 553
Denominatar;
Denominator for basic
calculation 17,080 12,776 9,601
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options 299 270 68
Convertible peeferred shares - 153 993
Convertible debentures - 1,065 -
Denominator for diluted
calculation 17,379 14,254 10,662

The assumed conversion of the Notes was anti-dilu-
tive for 2002. The assumed conversion of the Deben-
tures was anti-dilutive for 2000.

{14) Stock Plans

The Company has granted nonqualified stock options
to officers, directors and other key employees under
plans approved by the shareholders in 2002 for the
purchase of its common shares at the fair market
value of the common shares on the dates of grant.
Options under the 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan
("LTIP") generally become exercisable on the third
anniversary of the date of the grant and expire on the
tenth anniversary of the date of the grant. The 2002
LTIP will expire in 2012. Options under the 2002 Non-
Employee Director Stock Option Plan ("NEDSOP”),
which pertains only to non-employee directors, are
immediately exercisable and expire on the tenth anni-
versary of the date of the grant. The 2002 NEDSOP
will also expire in 2012.
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Changes in options outstanding are as follows:

2002 2001 ‘ 2000
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Shares Subject Average Shares Subject Average Shares Subject

Exercise Price to Option Exercise Price to Option Exercise Price to Option
Beginning of year $7.75 805,876 $6.45 848,211 $6.61 612,350
QOptions granted 26.72 327,850 9.78 275,350 6.58 428121
Options exercised 6.98 [69,433) 6.02 (314,458) 487 (19,775)
Options expired/cancelled 22.02 {7,150) 7.08 (3.227) 7.46 (172.485)
End of year $13.59 1,067,143 §7.75 805,878 $6.46 848,211
Exercisable at year end $10.70 490,243 $6.76 455,428 $6.03 517,795

The options outstanding as of December 31, 2002
are summarized as follows:

Weighted- Number of Weighted-

Range of Average Options Average
Exercise Prices Exercise Price Outstanding Remaining Life
$3.07-5.69 $3.96 35,500 2 years
6.13-9.60 7.89 694,668 7 years
17.10-31.40 26.74 326,975 9 years
1,067,143

The 2002 plan also provides for restricted common
share long-term incentive awards as defined under the
plan. As of December 31, 2002 plan participants had
been awarded 392,000 restricted common shares.
Deferred compensation is recorded for the fair value
of the restricted common share awards on the date of
grant and is amortized over the five-year period the
related services are provided. The amount charged to
operations in 2002, 20071 and 2000 was $0.2 mil-
lion, $0.3 million and $0.7 million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2002, 696,141 shares are available for
additional awards.

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock
options granted was $15.28, $4.88 and $3.22 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, on the dates of
grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions:
2002 - expected dividend vield of 1%, risk free inter-
est rate of 4.8%, expected stock volatility of 51%, and
an expected option life of 7V, years; 2001 - expected
dividend yield of 1%, risk free interest rate of 4.9%,
expected stock volatility of 47%, and an expected
option life of 7, years; and 2000 - expected dividend

vield of 1.3%, risk free interest rate of 6.5%, expected
stock volatility of 42%, and an expected option life of
7v, years. The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25
in accounting for its stock option grants and, accord-
ingly, no compensation cost has been recognized in
the consolidated financial statements for its stock
options which have exercise prices equal to or greater
than the fair values of the common shares on the
dates of the grant. Had the Company determined
compensation cost based on the fair values at the
grant dates for its stock options under SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the
Company’s earnings from continuing operations, and
basic and diluted earnings from continuing operations
per common share would have been reduced to the
pro forma amounts indicated below:

2002 2001 2000
{in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Earnings:
As reported $ 10629 § 14679 § 1,321
Stack option compensation
expense based on fair value

method, net of tax {1,155) (475) (186)
Pro forma § 9474 § 14204 § 1,135
Basic earnings per commeon
share:
As reported § 082 3 114§ 0.05
Pro forma 0.55 1.10 0.03
Diluted earnings per common
share:
As reported $ 061 8 109 § 0.05
Pro forma 0.85 1.05 0.03




(15)  Other Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Plans
The Company maintains a noncontributory defined
benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its
employees. In November 2002, the plan was
amended whereby benefits accrued under the plar{
were frozen as of December 31, 2002. The Company’s
funding policy is to make annual contributions to the
extent such contributions are actuarially determined
and tax deductible.

In 2002, the Company recorded pension expense
of $6.0 million, which includes a curtailment loss of
$2.0 million resulting from the aforementioned
amendment to the plan. In 2001 and 2000, the Com-
pany recorded pension income of $2.8 million and
$4.6 million, respectively. The expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets was 9.5% in 2002 and 2001
and 9% in 2000. For 2003 pension expense, the
expected return on plan assets has been reduced to
8.75%. The actuarial computations assumed a dis-
count rate on benefit obligations at December 31,
2002 and 2001 of 6.75% and 7.25%, respectively.
The assumed rate of compensation increase of 4.95%
for 2002 and 2001 approximated the Company's pre-
vious experience. No compensation increase will be
assumed after 2002 due to the aforementioned freez-
ing of the plan. The assets of the pension plan consist
primarily of equity and fixed income securities, which
are readity marketable.

A summary of the components of net periodic pen-
sion (expense) income follows:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)

Service cost § (4353) § (3693 § (2819
Interest on projected benefit

obligation {15,091) (14,281) [11,361)
Expected return on plan assets 17.217 20,820 17,616
Amortization of transitional

assets - 8 8
Amortization of prior service cost {261) {85} {(101)
Recognized net actuarial {loss)

gain (1,476) - 1277
Curtailment loss {1,998} - -

Net pension (expense) income $ (53962) $§ 2769 § 45620

The following sets forth the funded status of the
plan as of December 31:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ~ § 214,273 § 196,700

Service cost 4,353 3,693
Interest cost 15,091 14,281
Benefits paid {17.279) (12,228)
Actuarial loss 12 11,827
Effect of curtailment (19.262) -
Projected benefit abligation at end of year § 197,188 § 214,273

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 187350 § 214418

Actual loss on plan assets (21,436) {14,840}
Banefits paid (17,279} (12.228)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year § 148635 § 187,350
Funded status § (48,553} § (26,923)
Unrecognized net loss 55432 37,505
Unrecognized prior service cost - 2,259
Prepaid pension cost S 6879 ¢ 12841

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 88,
“Employers” Accounting for Settlements and Curtail-
ments of Defined Benefit Plans and for Termination
Benefits,” since the curtailment of $13.3 million did
not exceed the previous unrecognized net loss, no por-
tion of the $19.3 million curtailment was recognized
in earnings for 2002. Accordingly, the remaining
unrecognized net loss will be accounted for in future
pension plan expense consistent with SFAS No. 87,
“Employers” Accounting for Pensions.”

Due to the lower discount rate and a decline in the
fair market value of plan assets during 2002 and
2001, the accumulated benefit obligation at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001 exceeded the fair value of
plan assets by $48.6 million and $11.3 million,
respectively. Consequently, a net of tax comprehensive
loss of $19.8 million and $12.9 million was charged
against shareholders’ equity in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets at December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001
(in thousands)
Prepaid pension cost (included in other assets) § 6873 8§ 1284

Intangible asset{includedinotherassets) $ - § 22589
Additional minimum liability (included in post-

retirement benefits obligations) § (55,432) $ (24,084)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {included

in shareholders’ equity) § 55432 § 21835
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Non-Qualified Plans
The Company has a supplemental defined benefit
plan for substantially all employees under which
employees may receive an amount by which benefits
earned under the pension plan exceed the limitations
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company
also has a supplemental retirement plan for officers
and certain employees. Benefits are based on years of
service and certain compensation that is excluded
under the qualified plan.

Total expenses under the non-qualified plans in
2002, 2001 and 2000 were $1.4 million, $0.7 mil-
lion and $0.9 million, respectively. The supplemental
plans of EDO and AIL were combined in 2001.

A summary of the components of net periodic pen-
sion expense follows:

2002
{in thousands}
Service cost $ 180
Interest on projected benefit obligation 815
Amortization of transitional assets 32
Amortization of prior service cost 141
Recognized net actuarial loss 225
Net pension expense $ 1403

Summarized below is the funded status of the com-
bined supplemental plans as of December 31:

2002 2001
(in thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at

beginning of year $ 11,638 S 9,747
Service cost 190 84
Interest cost 815 700
Benefits paid (847) (760)
Actuarial loss 951 297
Plan amendments 400 1470
Projected benefit obligation at end of

year $ 13,047 § 11,638
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

the year S - 3 -
Employer contribution 847 760
Benefits paid (847) {760)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year  $ - s -
Funded status $  (13047) § (11,538)
Unrecognized net loss 4,204 3.525
Unrecognized prior service cost 1,684 1377
Unrecagnized net obligation 10 42
Accrued benefit cost $ {7,149) 3 (6,594)
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Due to the lower discount rate during 2002 and
20071, the accumulated benefit obligation at Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001 exceeded the fair value of
plan assets by $11.0 million and $8.9 million, respec-
tively. Consequently, a net of tax comprehensive loss
of $0.8 million and $0.5 million was charged against
shareholders’ equity in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets at December 31 are as follows:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Accrued benefit cost {included in post-

retirement benefits obligation) § (7.149) § 16,594
Intangible asset (included in other assets}  $ 1,634 § 1419
Additional minimum liability {included in

post-retirement benefits obligations) $ (3864 § (2.270)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

{included in shareholders equity} § 2170 $ 851

401(k) Plans

In 2000, there were four 401(k) plans sponsored by the
Company covering substantially all employees. These
plans were merged as of January 1, 2001. The current
merged plan provides for matching by the Company of
50% of the first 6% of employee contributions. The
match is provided in the Company’s common stock
under the ESOP plan. In 2000, matching contributions
under the original plans were not material.

(16)  Post-Retirement Health Care and Life Insurance
Benefits
The Company provides certain health care and life
insurance benefits to qualified retired employees and
dependents at certain locations. These benefits are
funded as benefits are provided, with the retiree pay-
ing a portion of the cost through contributions,
deductibles and coinsurance provisions. The Company
has always retained the right to modify or terminate
the plans providing these benefits.

In accordance with SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Post-Retirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions,” the Company recognizes these benefit
expenses on an accrual basis as the employees earn
them during their employment rather than when they
are actually paid.




EDO Post-Retirement Benefit Plan
Post-retirement health care and life insurance expense
(income) included the following components:

AlL Post-Retirement Benefit Plan
Postretirement expense included in the consolidated
financial statements comprised the following:

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
{in thousands) (in thousands)
Service cost $ - 3§ 69 § 57 Service cost $ 313 % 86 3 53
Interest cost 17 229 239 Interest cost 431 663 468
Curtailment gain - (929 - Recognized net actuarial gain (269) (11 -
Tatal post-retirement health care Total post-retirement expense $ 475 8 738§ 51
and life insurance expense ] ]
lincome) $ 71§ (831 § 296 The funded status of the AlL post-retirement benefit

In 2001, the Company recognized a curtailment
gain as a result of a plan amendment whereby cover-
age will not be provided for future retirees.

The funded status of the EDQO post-retirement
health care and life insurance benefits plan is as fol-
lows as of December 31:

2002 2001
(in thousands)

Change in accumulated post-retirement benefit

obligation:
Accumulated benefit obligation
at beginning of year § 2317 § 3277
Service cost - 69
Interest cost A 228
Benefits paid (448) (354)
Participant contributions 31 32
Actuarial loss 42 43
Effect of curtailment - [929)
Unfunded accumulated post-retirement benefit
obligation at end of year § 2113 § 2317
Unrecognized net gain 39 81
Accrued postretirement benefit cost $ 2182 § 2398

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation
include a discount rate of 6.75% and 7.256% at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and esti-
mated increases in health care costs. The Company
has limited its increase in health care costs to 5% per
year by requiring the retirees to absorb any costs in
excess of % and has used such rate to measure its
obligation.

plan is as follows as of December 31:

2002 2001
{in thousands)

Change in accumulated post-retirement
benefit obligation:

Accumulated benefit obligation 3 8737 8 8.876
Service cost 313 86
Interest cost 431 663
Benefits paid {449) (531)
Actuarial loss (gain) 2,739 {297)
Unfunded accumulated post-retirement

benefit obligation at end of year $ nin § 8,737
Unrecognized {loss) gain {1,725) 1,282
Accrued postretirement benefit cost § 10046 § 10,019

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation
include a discount rate of 6.75% and 7.25% at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The accu-
mulated benefit obligation would not be affected by
increases in healthcare costs since such costs are
funded by the participants.

(17) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is contingently liable under the terms of
letters of credit aggregating approximately $86.9 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002, should it fail to perform in
accordance with the terms of its contracts with for-
eign customers.

At December 31, 2002, the Company and its sub-
sidiaries were obligated under building and equipment
leases expiring between 2003 and 2012. The aggre-
gate future minimum lease commitments under those
obligations with noncancellable terms in excess of
one year are as follows:

*2003 - $7,995
«2004 - $6,432
*+ 2005 - $5,467
* 2006 - $4,448
*+ 2007 - $4.011
¢ Thereafter - $18,919

Rental expense for continuing operations under

such leases for the years ended December 31, 2002,
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2001 and 2000 amounted to $5.2 million, $4.7 mil-
lion and $3.9 million, respectively.

{18) Legal Matters

The Company and three other companies entered into
a consent decree in 1990 with the Federal govern-
ment for the remediation of a Superfund site. The
Superfund site has been divided into three operable
units. The consent decree relates to two of the opera-
ble units. The third operable unit has not been for-
mally studied and, accordingly, no liability has been
recorded by the Company. The Company believes that
the aggregate amount of the obligation and timing of
cash payments associated with the two operable units
subject to the consent decree are reasonably fixed
and determinable. Accordingly, the environmental obli-
gation has been discounted at five percent. Manage-
ment estimates that as of December 31, 2002, the
discounted liability over the remainder of the twenty-
three years related to these two operable units is
approximately $2.3 million of which approximately
$0.3 million has been classified as current and is
included in accrued liabilities. Approximately $0.6 mil-
lion of the $2.3 million liability will be incurred over
the next five years.

The Company is also involved in other environmen-
tal cleanup efforts, none of which management
believes is likely 1o have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, results
of operations or liquidity.

Additionally, the Company and its subsidiaries are
subject to certain legal actions that arise out of the
normal course of business. It is management’s belief
that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s con-
solidated financial position, results of operations or
tiquidity.

(19) Business Segments
The Company determines its operating segments
based upon an analysis of its products and services,
production processes, types of customers, economic
characteristics and the related regulatory environment,
which is consistent with how management operates
the Company. The Company’s continuing operations
are conducted in three business segments: Defense,
Communications and Space Products, and Engineered
Materials.

Our Defense segment provides integrated front-line
warfighting systems and components including elec-
tronic warfare, radar countermeasures systems, recon-

naissance and surveillance systems, aircraft weapons
suépension and release systems, airborne mine coun-
termeasures systems, integrated combat and sonar
systems, command, control and communications sys-
tems and professional, operational, technical and infor-
mation technology services for military forces and
governments worldwide. Our Communications and
Space Products segment supplies antenna products
and ultra-miniature electronics and systems for the
remote sensing and electronic warfare industries. Our
Engineered Materials segment supplies commercial
and military piezo-electric ceramic products and
advanced fiber composite structural products for the
aircraft, communication, navigation, chemical, petro-
chemical, paper and oil industries.

Domestic U.S. Government sales, which include
sales to prime contractors of the U.S. Government,
amounted to 75%, 69% and 63% of net sales, which
were 82%, 77% and 69% of Defense’s net sales, 62%,
b5% and 66% of Communications and Space Prod-
ucts’ net sales and 42%, 41% and 33% of Engineered
Materials’ net sales for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. Export sales comprised 15%, 156% and 18% of
net sales for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
addition, the Universal Exciter Upgrade program in the
Defense segment comprised approximately 14%, 15%
and 15% of net sales for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Principal products and services by segment are as
follows:

Defense Segment

* Electronic Warfare

* Radar Countermeasures Systems

* Reconnaissance and Surveillance Systems

* Aircraft Weapons Suspension and Release Sys-
tems

s Airborne Mine Countermeasures Systems

e Integrated Combat Systems

¢ Command, Control and Communications Sys-
tems

* Undersea Systems

» Professional, Operational, Technical and Infor-
mation Technology Services

Communications and Space Products Segment

¢ Antenna Products
* Communications and Countermeasures Sys-
tems
* Space Products
Engineered Materials Segment
e Electro-Ceramic Products
* Advanced Fiber Composite Structural Products




Information by segment on sales, operating earn-
ings, identifiable assets, depreciation and amortiza-
tion, and capital expenditures is as follows for each of
the three years ended December 31:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Net sales:
Defense $ 243447  § 183454 $ 142,044
Communications and Spaee
Products 47,262 39,998 30,027
Engineered Materials 38,167 36,508 34,751
$ 328876 § 259961 $ 206,822
Operating earnings:
Defense § 286874 8§ 21927 $ 17an
Communications and Space
Products {441) (383) (11,178)
Engineered Materials 3,150 4,603 3,298
Curtailment {loss) gain {1,998) 929 -
$ 29385 § 27076 $ 9238
Net interest expense {4,856) {2,216) (2,438)
Other expense, net (95) (971) {215)
Earnings before income taxes
and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting
principle § 24334 § 23889 § 5586
Identifiable assets:
Defense $ 224017 8 129,831 $ 106,958
Communications and
Space Products 40,001 49,769 37,576
Engineered Materials 28,496 27,690 29,139
Corporate 189,060 78,540 40,581
$ 481574  § 285,830 § 214,254
Depreciation and amortization:
Defense § 7440 § 6.081 $ 5047
Communications and Space
Products 1,885 2438 1.960
Engineered Materials 1,800 2,029 1,882
Corporate 186 848 552
§ 11321 8§ 1139 $§ 940
Capital expenditures:
Defense § 3587 § 7896 § 1,559
Communications and Space
Products 8186 4,308 570
Engineered Materials 1,819 1479 1,705
Corporate 871 515 27
§ 7093 § 14298 § 3861

Merger-related costs, including IPR&D, attributable
to the Condor acquisition and the EDO-AIL merger are

included in the segments as follows:

2001 2000

2002
(in thousands)
Defense $ 567 3 937 3 3342
Communications and Space
Products 184 7,695
Engineered Materials _ 197 558
Total $ 567 § 1318 § 11,495
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP,
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
EDO Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of EDO Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, sharehclders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of EDO Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1{(g) to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
changed its method of accounting for goodwill to conform with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.
142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
February 11, 2003




QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth unaudited quarterly financial information for 2002 and 2001 (in thousands,

except per share amounts).

First Quarter

Secand Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
‘Net sales from continuing operatigns s 65909 § 60151 & 73,719 ¥ 657/6 S 85104 § 60,353 §103,144 & 72681
Net earnings before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle;
Continuing operatigns 2,810 2,843 3,074 3,095° 3371 3,833 4,737 4,908:
Discontinued operations - - - - - - - 273
2,810 2,843 3,074 3,085 3.3 3,833 4,737 5181
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax 13.363)f - - - - - - -
{Loss) earnings {553) 2,643 3,074 3,085 3371 3,833 4737 5181
Earnings per share before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principle:
Basic:
Continuing operations 0.17 0.23 0.18 0.25 0.20 0.32 0.28 0.32
Discontinued operations - - - - - ~ - 0.02
0.17 0.23 0.18 0.25 0.26 0.32 0.28 0.34
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax (0.20) - - - - ~ - -
{Loss) earnings-Basic {0.03) 0.23 0.18 0.25 0.20 0.32 0.28 0.34
Diluted:
Continuing operations 0.18 0.22 0.18 0.24 0.19 0.30 0.26 0.3
Discontinued operations - - - - - - - 0.02
0.16 0.22 0.18 0.24 0.19 0.30 0.26 0.33
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax: {0.20) - - - - - - -
{Loss) earnings-Diluted {0.04) 0.22 0.18 0.24 0.19 0.30 0.28 0.33
Preferred dividends paid - 194 - - - - - —
a.  Includes merger-related costs of $0.5 million,
b. Includes merger-related costs of $0.8 millign.
¢. Includes write-off of purchased in-process research and development costs of $0.2 million and merger-related costs of $0.2 millign.
d.  Inciudes merger-related costs of 80.2 million and a $2.0 million defined benefit pension plan curtailment loss.
e. Includes a $0.9 million post-retirement curtailment gain.
f. Upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company recorded a cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle effective January 1, 2002. See Note 1{g) to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002.
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Forward-Looking Statement

Shareholder Information

EDO Corporation

60 East 42nd Street

Suite 5010

New York, NY 10165 USA
212.716.2000, Fax 212.716.2050
www.edocorp.com

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting will be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2003 at 9 A.M. at
the Fairmont Hotel, San Jose, California. Notice of the meeting and proxy statement are
being mailed with this report to shareholders of record as of March 7, 2003.

For information about EDO Corporation Investor Relations contact
Mr. William J. Frost, 212.716.2006, Fax 212.716.2050, investor.relations@edocorp.com

For information about EDO Products contact
Mr. Harvey N. Kreisberg, 212.716.2012, Fax 212.716.2051, harvey.kreisberg@nyceda.com

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038
800.937.5449

Ernst & Young LLP
787 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10019
212.773.3000

Neil G. Berkman Associates
1900 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2850, Los Angeles, CA 90067
310.277.5162, nberkman@berkmanassociates.com

This report contains statements that may be forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are
based on current expectations, estimates and projections about the Company's business
based, in part, on assumptions made by management. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that
are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially
from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements due to
numerous factors, including the following: changes in demand for the Company's
products, product mix, the timing of customer orders and deliveries, the impact of
competitive products and pricing, difficulties encountered in the integration of acquired
businesses and other risks discussed from time to time in the Company's Securities and
Exchange Commission filings and reports. In addition, such statements could be affected
by general industry and market conditions and growth rates, and general domestic and
international economic conditions. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date on which they are made, and the Company does not undertake any obligation to
update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date
of this report.
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DO Corporation
60 East 42nd Street, Suite 5010, New York, NY 100165
2§2.716.2000, www.edocorp.com

EDO Corporation ~ Washington Operations
1745 jefferson Davis Highway, Suite 601
Arlington, VA 22202

703.412.3300

EDOC Advanced Engineering and Research Associates
6350 Walker Lane, Suite 100

Alexandria, VA 22310

703.922.4760

EDO Antenna Products and Technologies
455 Commack Road

Deer Park, NY 11729

631.595.5000

EDO Combat Systems
i801-E Sara Drive
Chesapeake, VA 23320
757.424.1004

EDC Communications and Countermeasures Systems
996 Flower Glen Street

Simi Valley, CA 93065

805.584.8200

EDC Defense Programs and Technologies
455 Commack Road

Deer Park, NY 11729

631.595.5000

EDO Electro-Ceramic Products
2645 South 300 West

Salt Lake City, UT 84115
801.486.7481
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EDO Fiber Science

506 N. Billy Mitchel! Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
801.537.1800

EDO M.Tech

1458 County Line Road, Buiiding
Huntingden Vziley, PA {9006
215.322.3057

EDO Marine & Aircraft Systems
1500 New Horizons Bivd.

N. Amityville, NY 11701
631.630.4000

EDO Professional Services

7600 Leesburg Pike, West Building
Falls Church, VA 22043
703.714.1800

EDQO Reconnaissance and Surveiflance Systems
‘8705 Madrone Parkway

Morgan Hill, CA 95037

408.201.8000

EDQ Speciaity Plastics
i5915 Peridns Road
Baton Rouge, LA 70810
225.752.2705

EDC Technical Services Cperations
254 Zzst Avenue K-4

Lancaster, CA 93535

800.443.7117
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